
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
DATE: THURSDAY, 1 MAY 2025  
TIME: 5:30 pm 
PLACE: Meeting Room G.01, Ground Floor, City Hall, 115 Charles 

Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ 
 
 
 
Members of the Committee 
 
Councillor Cassidy (Chair) 
  
 
Councillors Adatia, Batool, Kitterick, March, O'Neill, Osman, Pickering, Porter, 
Rae Bhatia and Waddington 
 
 
Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider 
the items of business listed overleaf. 
 

 
 
For Monitoring Officer 
 
 
 
 

Officer contacts: 
  

Julie Bryant (Julie.bryant@leicester.gov.uk) and Ed Brown (Edmund.brown@leicester.gov.uk) 
(Governance Services) 

  
Leicester City Council, 115 Charles Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ 

 



 

Information for members of the public 
 
Attending meetings and access to information 
 
You have the right to attend formal meetings such as full Council, committee meetings, City Mayor & 
Executive Public Briefing and Scrutiny Commissions and see copies of agendas and minutes. On 
occasion however, meetings may, for reasons set out in law, need to consider some items in private.  
 
Dates of meetings and copies of public agendas and minutes are available on the Council’s website 
at www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk, from the Council’s Customer Service Centre or by contacting us 
using the details below.  
 
Making meetings accessible to all 
 
Wheelchair access – Public meeting rooms at the City Hall are accessible to wheelchair users.  
Wheelchair access to City Hall is from the middle entrance door on Charles Street - press the plate on 
the right hand side of the door to open the door automatically. 
 
Braille/audio tape/translation - If you require this please contact the Governance Services Officer 
(production times will depend upon equipment/facility availability). 
 
Induction loops - There are induction loop facilities in City Hall meeting rooms.  Please speak to the 
Governance Services Officer using the details below. 
 
Filming and Recording the Meeting - The Council is committed to transparency and supports efforts to 
record and share reports of proceedings of public meetings through a variety of means, including 
social media. In accordance with government regulations and the Council’s policy, persons and press 
attending any meeting of the Council open to the public (except Licensing Sub Committees and where 
the public have been formally excluded) are allowed to record and/or report all or part of that meeting.  
Details of the Council’s policy are available at www.leicester.gov.uk or from Governance Services. 
 
If you intend to film or make an audio recording of a meeting you are asked to notify the relevant 
Governance Services Officer in advance of the meeting to ensure that participants can be notified in 
advance and consideration given to practicalities such as allocating appropriate space in the public 
gallery etc.. 
 
The aim of the Regulations and of the Council’s policy is to encourage public interest and 
engagement so in recording or reporting on proceedings members of the public are asked: 
✓ to respect the right of others to view and hear debates without interruption; 
✓ to ensure that the sound on any device is fully muted and intrusive lighting avoided; 
✓ where filming, to only focus on those people actively participating in the meeting; 
✓ where filming, to (via the Chair of the meeting) ensure that those present are aware that they 

may be filmed and respect any requests to not be filmed. 
 
Further information  
 
If you have any queries about any of the above or the business to be discussed, please contact: 
Julie.bryant@leicester.gov.uk or Edmund.brown@leicester.gov.uk or call in at City Hall. 
 
For Press Enquiries - please phone the Communications Unit on 0116 454 4151. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

http://www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk/
http://www.leicester.gov.uk/
mailto:Julie.bryant@leicester.gov.uk
mailto:Edmund.brown@leicester.gov.uk


 

 
PUBLIC SESSION 

 
AGENDA 

 
NOTE: 
 
This meeting will be webcast live at the following link:- 

 
http://www.leicester.public-i.tv 

 
An archive copy of the webcast will normally be available on the Council’s 
website within 48 hours of the meeting taking place at the following link:-  
 

http://www.leicester.public-i.tv/core/portal/webcasts 
 
 

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION 
 
If the emergency alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building immediately by the 
nearest available fire exit and proceed to the area outside the Ramada Encore Hotel 
on Charles Street as directed by Democratic Services staff. Further instructions will 
then be given. 

 
 

  
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

 To issue a welcome to those present, and to confirm if there are any apologies 
for absence.  
  

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 

 Members are asked to declare any interests they may have in the business to 
be discussed.  
  

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

Appendix A 

 The minutes of the meeting of the Overview Select Committee held on 
Wednesday 19th March have been circulated, and Members will be asked to 
confirm them as a correct record.  
  

4. CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

 

 The Chair is invited to make any announcements as they see fit.    
  

5. QUESTIONS, REPRESENTATION AND STATEMENTS 
OF CASE  

 

 

http://www.leicester.public-i.tv/
http://www.leicester.public-i.tv/core/portal/webcasts


 

 The Monitoring Officer to report on the receipt of any questions, 
representations and statements of case submitted in accordance with the 
Council’s procedures.  
  

6. PETITIONS  
 

 

 The Monitoring Officer to report on any petitions received.  
  

7. TRACKING OF PETITIONS - MONITORING REPORT  
 

Appendix B 

 The Monitoring Officer submits a report that updates Members on the 
monitoring of outstanding petitions. The Committee is asked to note the current 
outstanding petitions and agree to remove those petitions marked ‘Petitions 
Process Complete’ from the report.  
  

8. QUESTIONS FOR THE CITY MAYOR  
 

 

 The City Mayor will answer questions raised by members of the Overview 
Select Committee on issues not covered elsewhere on the agenda.  
  

9. INDEPENDENT CARE HOMES IN LEICESTER CITY  
 

Appendix C 

 The Strategic Director of Social Care and Education presents a report, 
requested by the Overview Select Committee, providing an update regarding 
the local authority’s role in the approval and oversight of care homes for 
children and adults in the city.  
  

10. CORPORATE ESTATE ANNUAL REPORT  
 

Appendix D 

 The Director of Estates and Building Services submits the Corporate Estate 
Annual Report for Financial year 23/24. 
 
   

11. OVERVIEW SELECT COMMITTEE WORK 
PROGRAMME  

 

Appendix E 

 The current work programme for the Committee is attached.  The Committee is 
asked to consider this and make comments and/or amendments as it considers 
necessary.  
  

12. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS  
 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 

Minutes of the Meeting of the 
OVERVIEW SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
Held: WEDNESDAY, 19 MARCH 2025 at 5:30 pm 
 
 

P R E S E N T: 
 

Councillor Cassidy - Chair 
 

Councillor Adatia Councillor Batool 
Councillor Kitterick Councillor March 
Councillor Mohammed Councillor Porter 
Councillor Rae Bhatia Councillor Singh Patel 
Councillor Waddington 
 
 

 

In Attendance: 
City Mayor Sir Peter Soulsby 

Deputy City Mayor Councillor Cutkelvin 
Councillor Pickering (Online) 

 
* * *   * *   * * * 

  
102. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Osman – Cllr Westley 

substituted. 

 

It was noted that Cllr Dawood had joined the executive and Cllr Mohammed 
would substitute for him until the end of the municipal year. 

  
103. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 Members were asked to disclose any pecuniary or other interests they may 

have in the business on the agenda. 

Councillor March made a declaration with regard to the item Capital Budget 
Monitoring April-December 2024/25, the report mentioned Ellesmere College, 
at which she was a governor. 

 
  

 

1

Appendix A



104. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
 It was noted that Cllr Batool was present at the previous meeting but had not 

been recorded as such. 

It was suggested that whilst the working group on adventure playgrounds had 
met, it would be useful for it to continue to look and how playgrounds could be 
helped. 

AGREED:  

That the minutes of the meeting held on 30 January 2025 be 
confirmed as a correct record subject to corrections as detailed 
above. 

  
105. CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 The Chair announced that the second session of informal scrutiny on workforce 

representation that was due to take place the previous week had been 
postponed and a new date was currently being established. 

The Chair announced that there would be a short break to allow for those 
observing Ramadan to break fast. 

  
106. PROGRESS ON ACTIONS AGREED AT THE LAST MEETING 
 
 The Chair noted that updates on actions were noted on the workplan. 

  
107. QUESTIONS, REPRESENTATION AND STATEMENTS OF CASE 
 
 The Monitoring Officer reported that no questions, representations and 

statements of case had been submitted in accordance with the Council’s 
procedures. 
  

108. PETITIONS 
 
 The Monitoring Officer reported that no petitions had been received. 

  
109. TRACKING OF PETITIONS - MONITORING REPORT 
 
 

The Monitoring Officer submitted a report which provided an update on the 
status of outstanding petitions against the Council’s target of providing a formal 
response within three months of being referred to the Divisional Director. 

It was noted that two were marked as red.  Updates were provided and it was 
noted that: 

Regarding the Peebles Way petition: 

The City Transport Director had to take over due to staff leaving partway 

2



through and a lack of resource in the team. 

Currently, he had: 

• Arranged for a member of the road safety team to attend Peebles Way 
to review traffic operations next week.  

• Requested data from the police. 

• Started analysis of traffic data. 

• Drafted correspondence to the lead petitioner/supporting ward member. 

 
Regarding the Oakland Avenue petition, there was currently a draft pro-forma 
that was written following a meeting with the petitioner and councillors in 
December. This was held until a response from the executive on a relevant 
policy area came forward as it would have materially changed our response.  
 
That had concluded, and it had been signed off on a design that would alleviate 
the issue and was discussed in that meeting. The proforma would be 
completed as soon as possible. 

AGREED: 

That the status of the outstanding petitions be noted, and to remove 
those petitions marked ‘Petition Complete’ Ref: from the report. 

  
110. CALL IN OF EXECUTIVE DECISION - PROPOSED PURCHASE OF A 134-

UNIT CITY CENTRE BUILDING 
 
 

The Monitoring Officer submitted a report informing the Commission that the 
Executive decision taken by the City Mayor on 3 March 2025 relating to the 
proposed purchase of the YoHo building has been the subject of a 7-member 
call-in under the procedures at Rule 12 of Part 4D, City Mayor and Executive 
Procedure Rules, of the Council’s Constitution. 

The Chair clearly outlined the process that he would follow in determining how 
to resolve the call-in. The Commission was recommended to either: 

a) Note the report without further comment or recommendation. (If the report 
was noted the process continues and the call-in will be considered at Council 
on Full Council or  

b) Comment on the specific issues raised by the call-in. (If comments were 
made the process continues and the comments and call-in would be 
considered at Full Council); or  

c) Resolve that the call-in be withdrawn (If the committee wished for there to be 
no further action on the call-in, then they must actively withdraw it. If withdrawal 
was agreed the call-in process stops, the call-in would not be considered at Full 

3



Council and the original decision takes immediate effect without amendment). 

The Director of Housing gave a presentation outlining the issue using the slides 
attached.  Key points (other than those on the slides) included: 

• The council continued to face financial pressures in this area, with £11m 
added to the homelessness budget for the last two years, and an 
overspend of £6m expected this year. 

• Despite the law limiting the length of stay in Bed and Breakfast to six 
weeks, the average length of stay in Leicester was currently 97 days, 
leading to criticism and financial penalties from the Social Care 
Ombudsman. 

• There were 1966 individuals on the housing register in need of one-bed 
properties, with an average wait time of up to 6 months. 

• The council was on track to deliver 1600 new homes, with 1100 
delivered in the last 4 years.  

• YoHo was a fairly new 134-unit building, exclusively self-contained and 
with modern facilities. It could help meet the demand for temporary 
accommodation. 

• Acquiring the building would: 
o a. enable the council to move all those currently in bed and 

breakfast. 
o b. reduce the council’s spend by £2.8m a year and; 
o c. provide clients with more independence including cooking and 

laundry facilities. 
• The council planned to work with a specialist housing provider with 

extensive experience managing such buildings. 
•  Different levels of support would be provided to the clients depending 

on where they are on their journey. 
• The building would not serve as another Dawn Centre but would provide 

accommodation to those on a positive trajectory toward independent 
living. 

• The plan was to reconfigure the building from 134 to 118 units, to enable 
the council to accommodate areas for support services and 
engagement; and communal use. 

• The YMCA for single people has a similar set up to the one proposed for 
YoHo, has been run successfully for many years and did not cause 
issues for the local community. 

• Watford, in conjunction with YMCA had a 10-storey building in the city 
centre which is 200 bedrooms and have used it since 2020 as temporary 
accommodation. The residents had been well integrated into the society. 

• The YoHo building had 7 floors and residents will be able to access only 
their own floor and community, alongside the ground floor which will be 
communal. 

• The Yoho building would exclusively be for singles; couples and families 
will not be accommodated. 

• The management plan would be subject to further scrutiny. 

4



• The Yoho building was ideal for those needing support around health 
issues because of its proximity to Inclusion Health care in Charles Barry 
house and Homelessness Mental health team and Turning Points. 

• Two external and one internal valuation were undertaken and indicate 
that the property is worth more than the council is paying. 
 

The Chair invited the proposer of the call-in, Councillor Kitterick, represented 
by Cllr Sahu (Seconder), to make their case. The following points were raised: 

• The council lacked the experience in managing a building of this size, as 
the YMCA example cited was smaller in size, and though long in 
operation, proved to be inadequate for the increasing number of clients. 

• The restriction of residents to own floors underscored the concerns 
about their vulnerability. 

• There was insufficient information regarding the planning behind the 
purchase. 

• The large number of residents could have significant impacts on both 
the building and other residents in the area. 

• The flats were small (23 sqm) and below national standards. 
• There should have been a more robust management plan, with evidence 

from other external providers of buildings of this size that have been a 
success. 

• There was no site visit to the building by the commission. 
• The planning strategy had not been clearly outlined, especially given the 

proposed remodelling and the planning conditions for it to be used as 
student accommodation. 

• The per unit would cost an excess of 6 figures, which did not seem a 
bargain as was indicated in the presentation. This money could be spent 
on other housing needs in the city. 

• The per-unit cost was higher than expected, and the building’s purchase 
price exceeded the national average for housing families. 

• The performance of the Housing Network as managers had been 
questioned based on the feedback of residents who stay in their 
properties. 
 

The Chair invited the City Mayor to respond, and the Deputy City Mayor, 
Housing and Neighbourhoods responded on his behalf. The following points 
were raised: 

 

• The cost of using bed and breakfast (B&Bs) accommodation was far 
higher than temporary accommodation. This was in addition to the 
fact that they lacked essential facilities like cooking and laundry and 
made it difficult to develop a network of friends/build a community. 

• The YoHo purchase addressed an immediate need for temporary 
accommodation, not as a long-term policy. 

• The decision that was called-in relates to the purchase, and not the 

5



management of the building.  
• The management of the building would be subject to further scrutiny. 
• The Housing department was open to organising a site visit for 

commission members. 
 

The Chair invited the following partners, Help the Homeless and Homelessness 
Charter for the City of Leicester to make representations. The following points 
were made: 

• There was a well-evidenced need for suitable temporary 
accommodation that the YoHo building would fulfil. 

• The building would provide a vital stepping stone for individuals 
transitioning toward independent living, offering stability not found in 
BnBs. 

• There was expertise in the city as well as around the country that the 
council and partner organisations can heavily draw from, and that can 
be mobilised to provide ongoing assistance to people living in these 
units. 

• Many of the services already had established relationships with these 
individuals. 

• The concerns about anti-social behaviour by the residents were 
misplaced, as these individuals were already a part of the community, in 
more suitable accommodation. 
 

The Chair invited a service user to share their experience, and the following 
points were made: 

• The B&Bs did not provide the stability required to integrate properly into 
society, because you can’t do your own cooking or washing. The living 
situation was also not good for one’s self-worth. 

• The YoHo building would provide a supportive environment where 
individuals on their path to independence could thrive. 
 

The Chair invited a response to the comments, and officers noted that: 

• The plan to address housing needs was being executed under several 
strands, including building and renting properties, and the purchase of 
over £100m worth of housing since 2019. 

• The YoHo building fell under temporary accommodation. A planning use 
change would be sought if it was ever to be made a permanent 
accommodation. 

• The pre-planning application for the building had been done and the 
purchase is subject to final planning. 

• This type of accommodation was demand-led and when the demand 
died down, the council could look to the best use of the building. 

• The use of the building would be restricted to 12-18 months. 
 
 

6



Members of the Committee discussed the report which highlighted the following 
points: 

• There was a need for the commission to be kept informed if the property 
was not being used as planned or the outcomes for purchasing were not 
being achieved. 

• There was a potential for people with different vulnerabilities to take up 
the property and there was need for a plan around this. 

• The management of the building needed to be thoroughly revisited. 
• Consideration should be given to issues around fire safety and noise. 

Additionally, there was need for an independent structural survey to be 
commissioned. 

 

In response to questions and comments by members of the OSC, officers 
noted the following: 

• There was already a Key Performance Indicator (KPI) for any 
accommodation within the service to monitor the actual length of stay of 
users and this data would be shared with the commission on a periodic 
basis. 

• In housing vulnerable individuals or those with protected characteristics, 
their preference /suitability would be taken on board in their placement.  

• The cost of the property was £10.9m and being funded through the 
£45m loan to support homelessness. 

• The needs of families were being addressed as well – though the 
purchase of 140 family properties, which were dispersed across the city. 

• The council did not purchase housing for investment returns. 
• What would be saved by this purchase was the equivalent of £65 a night 

for an individual to stay in a B&B. The council received approximately 
18% back in housing benefits. 

• Assurances were given that the building was 90% over the line on due 
diligence and would be signed off as satisfactory in due course before 
purchase. 

The Chair asked if the proposer wished to withdraw the call-in.  

Councillor Cassidy moved that, following the points raised during the meeting, 
the call-in be withdrawn. This was seconded by Cllr. Mohammed and upon 
being put to the vote, the motion was carried. 

 

RESOLVED: 

1) That the call-in be withdrawn. 
  

111. QUESTIONS FOR THE CITY MAYOR 
 
 

Prior to receiving questions, the City Mayor gave a presentation on the interim 

7



submission regarding Local Government Reorganisation. 

Slides were presented (attached), other points included: 

• This was not the final position, but an interim submission needed to be 
submitted to the government. 

• In January, the district councils in Leicestershire acknowledged that it 
would be necessary to make significant adjustments with regard to 
devolution in the region, although there had been objections form Oadby 
and Wigston Borough Council (OWBC). 

• Leicestershire County Council had acknowledged the need for changes 
in boundaries. 

• Central Government wanted to achieve combined mayoral authorities 
across the whole of England. 

• The government wanted unitary councils and where the size and/or 
boundaries of an authority hindered the delivery of services, proposals 
were would be expected to address this. 

• The full proposal was to be submitted on 8 November 2025. 
• With regard to the populations of the Mayoral Strategic Authority, it was 

thought that a population of 1.2m would be accepted despite being short 
of the 1.5m target. 

• The City of Leicester had a uniquely tight boundary.  This was due to the 
fact that whilst many urban areas had become metropolitan districts and 
had their boundaries extended in the 1970s, Leicester had not. 

• Discussions would be needed with district councils regarding housing. 
• The Leicester Built Up Area as defined by the Office of National 

Statistics went beyond the city boundaries, as did the principle urban 
area, the bus catchment area, the travel to work area and the 
Coronavirus Lockdown area. 

• The County Council were now suggesting freezing the Leicester City 
Boundary and having a single unitary boundary around it. 

• The proposal from Leicester City Council (LCC) allowed room for 
discussion with the county and district councils. 

• The final proposal would come to Full Council and OSC prior to that. 

Questions were invited from members and the following responses were given: 

• The proposal would be the subject of proper discussion in Council and 
would require the agreement of the Council. 

• Discussion had taken place between the leaders of Leicestershire 
County Council, Rutland County Council.  Ultimately democratic 
approval would be needed. 

• Leicester City Council had been a mayoral system for 14 years, this 
might want to be reviewed if changes were made.  Whether the mayoral 
system was retained or not would not make any immediate difference.  
Some areas had two mayors, and the example of Salford City Council 
was given, whereby the city council had a mayor, and they were also 
under the Greater Manchester Combined Authority, which also had a 

8



metropolitan mayor. 
• The government had the primary legislation that can allow Local 

Government Reorganisation to be delivered and established. However, 
it had indicated that there was an intention of having a bill which had the 
power to impose solutions and dissolve previous established authorities. 
It was desired to get a firm view from the Council as to what it thought 
ought to happen. 

• Discussion with the County Council may help to understand what a 
sensible extension of the city boundary might look like. 

AGREED: 

 That the presentation be noted. 

 

The Chair accepted the following questions to be asked to the City Mayor: 

 

Councillor March also asked: 

Am I right in my understanding that we've brought in an external organisation to 
support with council tax bands for individuals/collection?  

Conscious that we are moving to a new system, and I've had a few people who 
have been put unexpectedly onto the wrong bills? 

In response to this it was clarified that annual billing had not been moved to an 
external organisation, however, an external support service was used when 
needed, although not for annual billing.  If there were individual cases, it could 
be useful to find out where there were exceptional cases and look into these.  It 
was further noted that a third-party organisation was involved with debt 
collection.  

 

Councillor Rae Bhatia asked: 

What are the latest timelines for Leys building demolition and its 
redevelopment? Can this be speeded up? 

In response to this the City Mayor reported that there had been different 
ownerships, but things were finally amalgamated, and the building would be 
demolished by the end of October this year. 

In response to a further question from Cllr Rae Bhatia regarding the potential to 
tax hotels, it was noted that some cities, such as Edinburgh, had such a tax, 
and some tourist areas could benefit from it.  However, whilst a local tax could 
be useful, local government was, in general, funded from property tax and 

9



business rated. 

 

Councillor March asked with regard to city catering, whether the new supplier 
was a real living wage employer. 

In response to this, it was stated that it was not a single caterer taking over and 
it was up to schools and colleges to procure their caterers, and it could not be 
certain that all of them would be real living wage employers and some paid 
better than others.   

 

In response to a question from Cllr Porter regarding the Museum Service 
Vision and Priorities 2025-29 and the reduction of opening hours for some 
museums and whether the plans could be put on hold to allow for a public 
consultation, it was explained that opening hours could be changed at any time 
and there was no need to put a hold on the plan. The plans would be 
considered by scrutiny and points made would be taken on board.  The 
changes were to a limited number of venues.  Decisions made on opening 
hours could be reversed at any time if deemed necessary.  The focus was on 
sites such as Leicester Museum and Art Gallery, where large numbers of 
people visited. 

In response to a questions from the Youth Representative regarding how much 
of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) was allocated to Leicester, and 
whether money from the government to empower communities could be used 
to fund adventure playgrounds, is was clarified that the funding from the 
UKSPF had been allocated in three tranches totalling £9.1m.  This was profiled 
across Skills, Business Support and Communities & Place, and the funding 
needed to be used in these profiles.  The UKSPF had been considered by the 
Economic Development, Transport and Climate Emergency (EDTCE) Scrutiny 
Commission. 

With regards to the query on adventure playgrounds, it was noted that their 
future was in the hands of the playgrounds themselves and the Council were 
keen to work with them.  It would be necessary to take opportunities during the 
year to look at this to consider the extent to which the Council were helping 
them. 

  
112. REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING APRIL-DECEMBER 2024/25 
 
 

The Director of Finance presented the third report in the monitoring cycle for 
2024/25 to the end of December 2024.  

The Committee was recommended to consider the overall position presented 
within the report and make any observations it saw fit. 

10



In response to questions, it was noted that: 

 
• The Director of Education was developing a plan to reduce DSG 

spending to manage the rising deficit. However, if the statutory override 
was not extended or the government did not find a solution, it could 
create a significant budget issue for the council because it may need to 
be financed from the general fund.  

• SEND education was under pressure, as EHCPs had strict criteria for 
determining eligibility for SEN support.  

• The council was creating more of its provisions to reduce costs and was 
collaborating with special schools in the city to enhance the impact of 
these provisions. 

• The council was constantly exploring opportunities to reduce cost, e.g. 
the transformation fund set aside for areas where technology can be 
used differently. The Revenue Monitoring Report period 3 highlighted 
ongoing transformation work in social care.  

• The government had increased the tonnage charges, and there was 
ongoing work to change some of the council’s waste practices. 

• The pandemic and shift to work-from-home have slightly increased the 
tonnage profile. 

• Questions were asked about the pressures in homelessness and 
recovering the costs from housing benefits.   It was noted the housing 
benefit system was complex and largely depended on individual 
circumstances.   

• The council could recover some of the cost through the housing benefits 
from tenants, particularly those in supported living. However, there was 
a strict criteria around what counted as supported living.  

•  There was an agreement to sell Greyfriars, which would generate 
capital receipts for the council. 

• The Workforce was an essential element to delivering good services and 
Social Care had done a lot of work around trying to fill the vacant 
positions.  

• There was a request for the £6.8m underspend for adult social care to 
be ringfenced and utilised for this service alone. 

 
AGREED 

1) That the report be noted. 
2) That comments made by members of this committee to be taken into 
account by the lead officers. 

  
113. CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING APRIL-DECEMBER 2024/25 
 
 The Director of Finance submitted the third capital monitoring report of the 

financial year. The purpose of this report is to provide the position of the capital 
programme at the end of December 2024 (Period 9). 

11



It was recommended that the Committee consider the overall position of this 
report and make any observations it saw fit.  

Comments and questions were invited from members, and the following were 
stated: 

• When allocating the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF)  the council 
had to ensure that its outcomes align with the objectives of the fund as 
part of their submission and this was monitored. 

• The capital investment in Haymarket was focused on the dance 
academy and its positive impact on the students that go there, the 
economic benefits across the city and income to the council. 

• Regarding De Montfort Hall, the goal was for the site to generate 
revenue to become self-sustaining and bring independent shows into the 
city. Other economic benefits included support for temporary work and 
student-based work. 

• The council was about to launch a neighbourhood needs assessment, 
which would focus on the needs and services available to specific 
neighbourhoods.  

• The council was reviewing how the assets and buildings were utilised 
and working on the capital investment going into those areas. 

• The reallocation of funds from Pioneer Park to Pilot House was because 
the objectives for Pioneer Park had been delivered under the allocated 
budget.   Pilot house required additional funds to ensure its completely.  
These programmes, both part of the Government’s Levelling Up 
initiatives, had prescribed uses and would not involve public 
engagement. 

• The council anticipated a revenue pressure of around £1.3m because of 
the surge in RTB applications in the 2025/26 HRA budget. However, in 
the long term, the removal of discount would benefit the Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) because it would help with sustainability once 
the surge was over. 

• Maintenance costs could either go through the revenue or capital 
accounts depending on their scale. There were significant rules around 
what qualified as capital expenditure including minimum spending 
thresholds, length of the project etc.  

• The £3.2m spend allocated for the railway station was a combination of 
the demolition costs, design and planning, negotiations and other 
structural elements. 

• The Jewry Wall Museum was scheduled for completion in June 2025, 
barring any further issues on the site. Some of the factors that had led to 
the project being protracted were two contractors working on the project 
went into liquidation, unforeseen delays as a result of other issues on 
site etc. However, the main risks had now been discharged. 

• Regarding St Paul’s Church and its deteriorating state, progress had 
been hindered because of difficulties with the owners of the building. 
Officers intended to serve a full repair notice, which would trigger a 
compulsory purchase order. 

12



AGREED 

1) That the report be noted. 
2) That comments made by members of this committee to be taken into 
account by the lead officers. 

  
114. COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME - TASK GROUP SCOPING DOCUMENT 
 
 

The Chair submitted a report providing members of the Committee with a 
proposed scope for the review of the Council Tax Support Scheme and the 
opportunity to comment on the scope for the review, suggest issues to include 
and consider joining the group. 

Comments and questions were invited from members, the following were 
stated: 

• It was requested that the task group look at how the discretionary 
scheme is monitored. 

• In response to requests that members other than those on the 
Committee be invited to present evidence, it was suggested that the 
committee could invite other members as part of their evidence 
gathering.    
 

AGREED: 
1) That the report be noted. 
2) That a working group be convened on the issue. 
3) That comments made by members of this committee to be taken into 

account. 
4) That members to be kept informed of any key issues related to this 

topic. 
5) That the task group look at how the discretionary scheme is 

monitored. 
  

115. OVERVIEW SELECT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 
 
 

The Committee was asked to consider the current work programme and to 
make comments and/or amendments as it considered necessary. 

It was noted that the next meeting would be 1 May 2025. 

AGREED: 

That the current work programme be noted. 

 
  

116. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS 
 

13



 There being no other items of urgent business, the meeting closed at 20:48. 
 

 

14



Devolution and 
local government 
reorganisation
Briefing

Interim LGR submission

March 2025

M
inute Item

 111

15



The Government’s approach 
to devolution
Deepen devolution to all England over next 5 years

Rebalance power from central to local government

Universal coverage of strategic authorities – clear 
preference for a mayor with associated powers

Align public authority boundaries to strategic 
authority boundaries (eg. police and fire) 

Local government reorganisation in two tier areas 
and for unitary councils where size and boundaries 
hinder delivery of sustainable services

Local government reorganisation to unlock devo

16



What Leicestershire, Leicester and Rutland agreed and 
sent to the Minister – January 2025

“We are clear that any LGR option will need to address the 
boundaries of the City.”

“…expansion of the city boundary… will deliver the right conditions… 
to ignite growth of the local and sub-regional economy, [create] a 
more efficient and financially sustainable local government 
structure allowing more effective public service delivery.”

“…we collectively recognise that we are an area which needs 
reorganisation to unlock devolution.”
 

17



Government response 
Feb 2025: 
• Formal invitation to councils to 

submit proposals

• Call for simpler, sensible and 
more financially sustainable 
unitary local government 
structures, complementing 
plans for devolution

• Interim plan to be submitted 
by 21 March

• Full proposal to be submitted 
by 28 November

18



Proposals should consider

• Single tier of local government

• Population of 500,000 or more

• Sensible geography

• Sensible economic areas

• Improvement to local services

• Efficiency savings

• Local identity, and cultural and 
historic importance

• Support to devolution

• Justification needed for not 
using existing district 
boundaries as ‘building blocks’

What the 
Government 

asked for

19



Government 
requirements

• Sensible population ratios between unitary 
local authorities and any strategic authority 

• New strategic authorities – combined 
population of 1.5 million+

• In agreeing areas for strategic authorities, the 
government will consider: 

Strategic authorities

o Scale
o Economies
o Contiguity
o No devolution 

islands

o Delivery
o Alignment
o Identity 

20



Existing city boundary

• Accident of history

• Illogical boundaries

• Heavily constrained – housing, 

employment land

• Constrained financially – low tax 

base

• Inefficient service delivery: waste 

collection, highway maintenance, 

education

21



City boundary context – boundary comparisons

Leicester

Population: 372k

Area km2: 73

Population density 
pop’n/km2: 

5095
Sheffield

Population: 564k

Area km2: 367

Population density 
pop’n/km2: 

1540

Bradford

Population: 553k

Area km2: 365

Population density
pop’n/km2: 

1514
Leeds

Population: 820k

Area km2: 550

Population density 
pop’n/km2: 

1493

22



Leicester
Population: 372k

Area km2: 73

Population density 
pop’n/km2: 

5095

23



City boundary context – boundary comparisons

Leicester

Population: 372k

Area km2: 73

Population density 
pop’n/km2: 

5095
Sheffield

Population: 564k

Area km2: 367

Population density 
pop’n/km2: 

1540

Bradford

Population: 553k

Area km2: 365

Population density
pop’n/km2: 

1514
Leeds

Population: 820k

Area km2: 550

Population density 
pop’n/km2: 

1493

24



Bradford
Population: 553k

Area km2: 365

Population density
pop’n/km2:

1514

25



City boundary context – boundary comparisons

Leicester

Population: 372k

Area km2: 73

Population density 
pop’n/km2: 

5095
Sheffield

Population: 564k

Area km2: 367

Population density 
pop’n/km2: 

1540

Bradford

Population: 553k

Area km2: 365

Population density
pop’n/km2: 

1514
Leeds

Population: 820k

Area km2: 550

Population density 
pop’n/km2: 

1493

26



Sheffield
Population : 564k

Area km2 : 367

Population density 
pop’n/km2 : 

1540

27



City boundary context – boundary comparisons

Leicester

Population: 372k

Area km2: 73

Population density 
pop’n/km2: 

5095
Sheffield

Population: 564k

Area km2: 367

Population density 
pop’n/km2: 

1540

Bradford

Population: 553k

Area km2: 365

Population density
pop’n/km2: 

1514
Leeds

Population: 820k

Area km2: 550

Population density 
pop’n/km2: 

1493

28



Leeds
Population : 820k

Area km2 : 550

Population density 
pop’n/km2 : 

1493

29



City boundary context – boundary comparisons

Leicester

Population: 372k

Area km2: 73

Population density 
pop’n/km2: 

5095
Sheffield

Population: 564k

Area km2: 367

Population density 
pop’n/km2: 

1540

Bradford

Population: 553k

Area km2: 365

Population density
pop’n/km2: 

1514
Leeds

Population: 820k

Area km2: 550

Population density 
pop’n/km2: 

1493

30



Illogical city boundary: examples 

31



Illogical city boundary: examples 

32



Illogical city boundary: examples 

33



Illogical city boundary: examples 

34



Illogical city boundary: examples 

35



Illogical city boundary: examples 

36



Illogical city boundary: examples 

37



Illogical city boundary: examples 

38



City boundary context – ‘official’ boundaries 

‘Built up Area’ 
Office of National Statistics 
defined area recognises the 

contiguous built-up area of the 
city and connected suburban 

areas

‘Principal Urban Area’ 
Locally defined boundary, published in 
statutory planning documents by the 

city, district and county councils, 
recognises the contiguous built-up 

area of Leicester

‘Coronavirus Lockdown Area’
Government recognised contiguous 

built-up area where transmission most 
likely to occur

39



City boundary context - city travel catchments 

City travel to work commuter area City bus catchment area

40



Existing and 
potential 
future 
strategic 
growth sites

41



County council 
LGR proposal

• One unitary council for 
existing county area

• Excludes Rutland

• No city boundary change

Populations

City – 394,670

County – 764,429

42



Reneges on Jan 2025 joint LLR 
submission to Government

Retains illogical city boundary

Severely constrains land for 
future city growth: housing, 
businesses, jobs

Unbalanced – 3 unitary councils 
of very different sizes

Does not meet Government 
target of 500,000+ unitary 
population

More expensive services: 
3 unitary councils not 2, less cost 
efficient

Will not deliver financial stability 
and sustainability for city council

Does not join up services across 
the built-up area

Retains unclear service 
responsibility for residents in 
adjoining suburbs

County council LGR proposal 

43



Districts/Rutland 
LGR Proposal 
• Two unitary councils across 

county/Rutland

• No city boundary change

  
Populations

City – 394,670

North unitary – 408,735
(NW Leicestershire, Melton, 
Charnwood, Rutland)

South unitary – 398,187 
(Harborough, O&W, Hinckley 
& Bosworth, Blaby)

44



Reneges on Jan 2025 joint LLR 
submission to Government

Retains illogical city boundary

Severely constrains land for 
future city growth: housing, 
businesses, jobs

3 unitary councils rather than 2, 
adding complexity

Does not meet Government 
target of 500,000+ unitary 
population

Does not join up services across 
the built-up area

More expensive services: 3 
unitary councils less cost 
efficient than 2. Splits social care 
in county area

Will not deliver financial stability 
and sustainability for city council

Retains unclear service 
responsibility for residents in 
adjoining suburbs

Rutland agrees loss of current 
council identity

Districts/Rutland LGR Proposal

45



City council 
LGR proposal 
• Expansion of city 

boundaries to 
include adjoining 
built-up areas

• New unitary council 
for county and 
Rutland

Populations

City – 618,869
County/Rutland – 

582,723

46



City council LGR proposal 
Delivers on Jan 2025 joint LLR 
submission to Government

Strong justification for not using 
existing district boundaries

Common sense city boundaries

Sensible geographical 
boundaries providing land for  
future city growth

Delivers mayoral strategic 
authority for LLR with 2 
balanced unitary councils

Meets Government target of 
500,000+ unitary population

Most cost efficient option for 
service delivery: 2 unitary 
councils rather than 3

Delivers financial stability and 
sustainability essential for city 
council survival

Joined up services across the 
whole built-up area

Clear service responsibility for 
residents living in adjoining 
suburbs

47



keeps to the Jan 2025 joint submission to Government
 
resolves the city’s boundary constraints 

identifies a sensible geographical boundary for Leicester

meets the city’s need for housing and employment land

gives 500k+ population per unitary

delivers a sensible economic area

is simple, easily understood and cost-effective

creates a stable and sustainable financial position for the city 
council. 
 

Only Leicester City Council’s proposal:

Conclusions

48



Ongoing 
engagement 
and review

Next steps

Submit 
interim 

proposal to 
Government 
by 21 March 

Feedback 
from 

Government 

Further detailed 
analysis 

Final submission 
to Government 

by 28 Nov 

49



50



  

 

 
 
 

Tracking of Petitions – 
Monitoring Report 

Overview Select Committee 
 

Date of meeting: 1st May 2025 
 

Lead officer: Jessica Skidmore 
 
 
 
 

  

51

Appendix B



 

 

Useful information 
 Ward(s) affected: All Wards – Corporate Issue 
 Report author: Jessica Skidmore 
 Author contact details: Jessica.Skidmore@leicester.gov.uk 
 Report version number: 1 
 

1. Purpose of the Report 
 
To provide Members with an update on the current status of responses to petitions against 
the Council’s target of providing a formal response within 3 months of being referred to the 
Divisional Director. 
 

 
2. Recommendations 
 
The Committee is asked to note the current status of outstanding petitions and to agree to 
remove those petitions marked ‘Petition Process Complete’ from the report. 
 

 
3. Detailed report 
 
The Committee is responsible for monitoring the progress and outcomes of petitions 
received within the Council.  An Exception Report, showing those petitions currently 
outstanding or for consideration at the current Overview Select Committee meeting is 
attached.   
 
The Exception Report contains comments on the current progress on each of the petitions.  
The following colour scheme approved by the Committee is used to highlight progress and 
the report has now been re-arranged to list the petitions in their colour groups for ease of 
reference: 
 
- Red – denotes those petitions for which a pro-forma has not been completed within three 

months of being referred to the Divisional Director. 
 

- Petition Process Complete - denotes petitions for which a response pro-forma has 
sent to the relevant Scrutiny Commission Chair for comment, subsequently endorsed by 
the Lead Executive Member and the Lead Petitioner and Ward Members informed of the 
response to the petition. 
 

- Green – denotes petitions for which officers have proposed a recommendation in 
response to a petition, and a response pro-forma has been sent to the relevant  
Scrutiny Commission Chair for comment, before being endorsed by the Lead Executive 
Member. 
 

- Amber – denotes petitions which are progressing within the prescribed timescales, or 
have provided clear reasoning for why the three-month deadline for completing the 
response pro-forma has elapsed. 

 
In addition, all Divisional Directors have been asked to ensure that details of all petitions 
received direct into the Council (not just those formally accepted via a Council Meeting or 

52



 

 

similar) are passed to the Monitoring Officer for logging and inclusion on this monitoring 
schedule. 
 

 
6. Financial, legal, equalities, climate emergency and other implications 

 
There are no legal, financial or other implications arising from this report. 
 

 
7.  Background Papers – Local Government Act 1972 
The Council’s current overall internal process for responding to petitions. 
 
8.  Summary of appendices:  
Appendix 1 – Table of Current petitions. 
 
9.  Is this a private report (If so, please indicate the reasons and state why it is not in 
the public interest to be dealt with publicly)?  
No 
 
10.  Is this a “key decision”? If so, why?  
No 

53





 

Date Petition 
referred to 
Divisional 
Director

Received From Subject Type - 
Cncr (C) 
Public 
(P)

No. of Sig Ward Lead 
Divisional 
Director 

Current Position Current Status

11/04/2024

Cllr Dave Peebles Way (c) 45 Rushey 
Mead

Sean 
Atterbury

Petition is in the last stages of being finalised and 
would be sent out for sign off in due course. Petition 
has been chased and is awaiting update.

RED

17/06/2024

Marcia Stewart Oakland Avenue (p) 137 Rushey 
Mead

Andrew L 
Smith A meeting is due with Cllr Dave prior to being 

presented to Executive Lead Member, Cllr Whittle. It 
is expected to be finalised by the end of April 2025.

RED

15/07/2024

Felicity Larson Allotment Bonfires (p) 24 Braunstone 
Park and 
Rowley 
Fields

Sean 
Atterbury

Petition awaiting Executive member signature before 
completion.

COMPLETE

31/10/2024

G Yusuf St Peter's Car Park (p) 108 Wycliffe Andrew L 
Smith

The Petition pro-forma is in the process of being 
finalised and will soon be despatched for comment 
and signature by thee Scrutiny Chair and Executive 
member.

COMPLETE

06/12/2024

Lucas Mouat Renovate Basketball 
Court in Victoria Park

(P) 21 Castle Sean 
Atterbury

Petition sent to Lead Director. Chased twice and 
awaiting response on the current position of the 
petition.

RED

05/03/2025
Viren Desai Residential Parking 

on Doncaster Road
(p) 124 Belgrave Andrew L 

Smith Petition sent to Lead Director
GREEN

07/04/2025

Shabir Sheikh Objection to 
Proposed 
Residential Parking in 
Stoneygate

(p) 171 Stoneygate Andrew L 
Smith

Petition sent to Lead Director

GREEN

55





  

 

 
 
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Briefing Report 

 
 

 
Independent Care Homes in Leicester City 

 
OSC Date: 1 May 2025 

Lead director: Laurence Jones 
 
 
 

 

57

Appendix D



 

 

  
Useful information 
 Ward(s) affected: All 
 Report author: Laurence Jones, Strategic Director, Social Care and Education 
 Author contact details: laurence.jones@leicester.gov.uk 
 Report version number: 1.1 
 

Summary 
 
1.1  Overview and Scrutiny Committee have requested this update regarding the local 

authority’s role in the approval and oversight of care homes for children and adults in 
the city.  

 
Recommended actions/decision 
2.1  Overview and Scrutiny Committee are recommended to note the report and to make 

suggestions for further action arising from its contents.  

 
1. Scrutiny / stakeholder engagement 
3.1  This report has been written collaboratively with colleagues from development, 

planning and Transportation.  

 
4. Background and options with supporting evidence  

  
4.1    Leicester City Council does not have any role in approving providers, registering or 

overseeing either independently run children’s or adult care homes within the city 
regardless of their size or location. The registration and regulatory oversight is dealt 
with by OFSTED for children’s care homes and supported accommodation for 16 and 
17 year olds and by the Care Quality Commission for adult social care and nursing 
homes. These organisations are responsible for seeing that homes are managed to 
the required standard and can closed or restrict the operation of homes if they are 
dissatisfied. They can also bring prosecutions against providers operating without 
approval.  

 
4.2  The Council runs some children’s homes for placing our own children who are in the 

care of the local authority. These need to be registered and inspected by OFSTED as 
described above. The Council invests in building relationships with neighbours and 
local residents and is committed to acting quickly on any concerns raised.   

 
4.3  The local authority will not automatically be aware of all independent care homes 

operating in the city. Some homes may be occupied by those placed by authorities 
other than Leicester City or, in the case of adults, those funding their care home 
themself. In some cases the Council may be able to identify the placing authority and 
to pass on concerns to them. If there is a serious safeguarding concern about an 
identified child, adult resident or member of staff and the legal threshold is met 
Leicester City may investigate alongside the placing local authority.    

 
4.4  If Leicester City has made (or “commissioned”) a placement with a provider who is 

causing concern for local residents it can investigate whether the contractual 

58

mailto:laurence.jones@leicester.gov.uk


 

 

obligations are being met and can liaise with the providers to make improvements or if 
their needs are not being met to find a different care placement.    

 
4.5  Leicester City Council as Local Planning Authority will have a role in considering 

planning applications for a proposed change of use of an existing building to become 
a care home and new build care homes. Objections can be raised to planning 
permission being granted on relevant material grounds such as noise, amenity/anti-
social behaviour, highways issues and flooding. Personal opinions on the applicant, 
concerns about property value changes, or objections based on factors like the 
applicant's business reputation are not valid grounds for an objection.  

 
4.6  Social Care and Education are not regularly supplying comments of change of use 

applications in respect of care homes. Whilst the department cannot comment directly 
on material planning matters in most cases the comments can support decision 
making by highlighting:  

• If the applicant or applicant organisation has a contractual relationship 
with the local authority 

• Whether there are any concerns about crime and anti-social behaviour in 
the area that might pose a risk to care home residents 

• The providers experience and therefore an observation about their ability 
to manage any noise or behaviours in the care home setting and the 
potential impact on the local community. Good care providers maintain 
good community relationship and are able to manage relationships with 
neighbours 

• The credibility of staffing plans and the likely impact of staffing and 
visitors on traffic and parking 

• Planning colleagues are also attempting to map saturation of care homes 
in any given area, although the local authority does not directly hold this 
information and it is not publicly available.  

  
4.7  The advice to Elected Members if they are concerned about an existing care home 

setting is to: 
• Check with officers if it is a setting that is run by or has a contractual 

relationship with the Council. If it does then officers will usually be 
able to make interventions to try and resolve the issues.  

• If the care home is not run by or has no contractual relationship with 
the local authority, or if the concerns are about a person placed by 
another authority, and direct contact with the provider has no 
alleviated your concerns you can contact OFTSED or the CQC 
directly.  

• If there is anti-social behaviour associated with the care home you 
can also contact your police neighbourhood inspector or beat 
manager. Or local ASB team?  

• If you are concerned that a care home resident may be at risk of 
serious harm due to abuse or neglect you should contact 0116 454 
1004  

 

 
 
 
 

59



 

 

5. Financial, legal, equalities, climate emergency and other implications 
 
5.1 Financial implications 
 

For any children’s or adults care home where the council has made or commissioned a 
placement, there is a risk that, if they were to lose their Ofsted or CQC registration, the 
Council would have to find other providers which would most likely be at a higher cost. 
Therefore it is prudent for the Council to do conduct financial checks before entering 
into a contractual relationship with providers. 
This risk does not extend, in a financial sense, to independent providers where the 
Council does not make or commission a placement. 
Signed: Mohammed Irfan, Head of Finance 
Dated: 16 April 2025 

 
5.2 Legal implications  
As set out in the report, oversight of independent care homes is by Ofsted and the CQC, 
and by the Council only where there is a contractual relationship with the care home. 
 
The planning approvals process for all care homes within the City is dealt with under the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990, either under delegated powers or by Planning 
Committee.   
 
The Planning Committee can only consider material considerations which are relevant to 
the application such as those highlighted above at 4.5 and have to reject other 
considerations which fall outside the remit of Planning. 
 
 
Signed: Kevin Carter 
Dated: 17th April 2025 

 
5.3 Equalities implications  

 
The paper provides an update regarding the local authority’s role in the approval and 
oversight of care homes for children and adults in the city. Council-run care homes, 
like all care providers, are legally obligated to ensure equality and diversity in their 
services and employment practices, adhering to the Equality Act 2010 and the Care 
Act 2014. This means treating residents with dignity and respect, providing equal 
access to care, and ensuring a diverse and inclusive workforce. The CQC, as a 
public authority, is also bound by the PSED when exercising its regulatory functions, 
including its inspections of health and social care providers. This means the CQC 
must consider the potential impact of its actions on people from different protected 
groups. Ofsted too is bound by the Equality Act 2010. As a public body, Ofsted has a 
legal duty to ensure equality, diversity, and inclusion in all its functions, including 
inspections and regulation. This duty requires them to have due regard to eliminating 
discrimination, promoting equality of opportunity, and fostering good relations 
between people with and without protected characteristics.  
Signed: Equalities Officer, Surinder Singh, Ext 37 4148 
Dated:  15 April 2025  

 
5.4 Climate Emergency implications 

 
 

60



 

 

There are no climate emergency implications associated with this report. 
 
Signed: Duncan Bell, Change Manager (Climate Emergency). Ext. 37 2249 
 
Dated: 17th April 2025 

 
5.5 Other implications (You will need to have considered other implications in preparing this 
report.  Please indicate which ones apply?) 

 
 
6.  Background information and other papers: 
 
7.  Summary of appendice

61



  

 

62



  

 

 

63





  

 

 
 
 

Corporate Estate 
Annual Report 

FY23/24 
Overview Select Committee 

 
 

Date of meeting: 1 May 2025 
 

Lead director: Matthew Wallace,  
Director of Estates & Building Services 

 
 
 
 

 

65

Appendix D



 

 

 Report authors: Matthew Wallace, Director of Estates & Building Services; 
Kathryn Ellis, Head of Strategic Property 
 Author contact details: Matthew.Wallace@leicester.gov.uk; 
Kathryn.Ellis@leicester.gov.uk 
 Report version number: FINAL 
 

1. Summary 
 
The Corporate Estate Annual Report for FY23/24 is provided to the Overview Select 
Committee to note the report.  
 
The Corporate Estate is the Council’s investment estate which comprised 1263 lease 
arrangements, based on a portfolio broadly categorised as retail, offices, industrial and 
‘other’.  
 
The Council have invested in commercial real estate for over 100 years and income 
derived from the portfolio is used to support the Council’s statutory services. The report is 
provided retrospectively, looking back at the estate’s performance in the prior financial 
year. The full report is produced in October/November each following year.  
 
The resilience of our investments across The Corporate Estate continues to remain strong 
despite the economic uncertainty across investment markets in this particular financial 
year.  
 
The Corporate Estate continues to provide good economic investment, performing above 
CCLA (Churches, Charities and Local Authorities) trends, bringing with it a solid year of 
results in the performance of our portfolio in a challenging market.  
 
Whilst the economy was volatile during the period reviewed, it’s impact and pressure on 
our financial performance has been well contained, with demand and occupation 
remaining high and voids remaining low.   
 
The portfolio is managed through a commitment to sustainable and ethical investment 
practices, considering environmental, social, and governance (ESG) factors.  
 

 
2. Recommended actions/decision 
 
To note the report. 
 

 
3. Scrutiny  
 
Overview Select Committee. 
 

 
 
 
4. Financial, legal, equalities, climate emergency and other implications 
 
4.1 Financial implications 

66

mailto:Matthew.Wallace@leicester.gov.uk
mailto:Kathryn.Ellis@leicester.gov.uk


 

 

Contained within the report, please see page 43. 
 
Signed: Stuart McAvoy, Head of Finance 
Dated: 17.04.25 

 
4.2 Legal implications  
This is an update report on the performance of the Corporate Estate standard practices. 
Individual transactions are dealt with on a case-by-case basis during normal business 
operations. 
 
Signed: Zoe Iliffe, Principal Lawyer, Property, Highways and Planning 
Dated: 17.04.25 

 
4.3 Equalities implications  

 
The Corporate Estate is made up of 1263 lease arrangements in 2023/24. The estate 
represents all areas of the City and provides members of the public within Leicester, 
Leicestershire and nationally with opportunities to lease buildings from the Council. This 
includes new business start ups and more established retailers, providing a wide range of 
businesses with retail, office, industrial and ‘other’ accommodation. The procurement of 
leases is provided through strict and rigorous assessment of bidding tenants that is 
governed by the Council’s constitution and the Local Government Act 1972 s.123. There 
are therefore no direct relevant equality implications arising from the report. It is important 
to ensure that the tenant procurement process is accessible and fair.  
 
Signed: Surinder Singh 
Dated: 17.04.25 

 
4.4 Climate Emergency implications 

 
Contained within the report and supported by the Assistant City Mayor for Environment and 
Transport, please see pages 41-42. 
 
Signed: Joanne Allen, Head of Business Performance and Sustainability 
Dated:  17.04.25 

 
5.  Background information and other papers: 
The Corporate Estate Annual Report FY23/24 
 
6.  Is this a private report (If so, please indicate the reasons and state why it is not in 
the public interest to be dealt with publicly)?  
No 
 
7.  Is this a “key decision”? If so, why?  
No 

67





1 

Corporate Estate Annual Report 

for the Year Ended March 2024 

 

  

69



2 

Contents 

 

1. FOREWORD FROM THE DIRECTOR ......................................................................................... 3 

2. Background to the Council’s Land and Property Holdings ....................................................... 4 

3. Executive Summary .............................................................................................................. 9 

4. Understanding Our Corporate Estate ................................................................................... 11 

Portfolio Key Facts ........................................................................................................................ 11 

Scope of the Estate ....................................................................................................................... 12 

5. VALUATION ........................................................................................................................ 20 

6. PORTFOLIO PERFORMANCE ................................................................................................ 25 

Occupancy: ................................................................................................................................... 25 

Revenue Performance: ................................................................................................................. 26 

Gross Rental Income - Corporate Estate Income by Sector: ....................................................... 27 

Yield in Detail: .............................................................................................................................. 37 

The Haymarket Shopping Centre: ................................................................................................ 40 

7. CLIMATE EMERGENCY ......................................................................................................... 41 

8. FINANCIAL STATEMENT ...................................................................................................... 43 

Corporate Estate Out-turn for the Year Ending 31 March 2024: ................................................ 43 

9. MANAGING RISK ................................................................................................................ 44 

10. FUTURE OUTLOOK AND STRATEGY FOR 2024/2025 ............................................................. 45 

Market Commentary: ................................................................................................................... 57 

11. CLOSING STATEMENT ......................................................................................................... 60 

 

  

70



3 

1. FOREWORD FROM THE DIRECTOR 

 

Welcome to Leicester City Council’s Corporate Estate Annual Report for the 

year ended March 2024. 

In closing the financial year, we present resilient results against a backdrop of 

a challenging market and UK economy.  

Citing the RICS’s economic outlook report for 23/24, the UK Economy’s overall 

momentum was at best ‘sluggish’ last year.  The two quarters ending the year 

saw the UK economy slip into a mild recession, feeling the impact of the 

steepest rise in policy interest rates set by the Bank of England over a two-year 

period since the late 1990s. This, coupled with the cost-of-living crisis and a Consumer Price growth 

averaging 7.4% for 2023, this has been felt across commercial tenants’ and households’ finances, 

individually and collectively. 

In many ways our commercial real estate portfolio performance in 23/24 echoes that of the wider 

sentiment of market analysts, indeed it demonstrates stoic and resilient performance, producing a 

gross yield of 7.66%, an improvement on last year and a very good result when compared to the 

national benchmarks. Managing the pressure around operational running costs and the impact on 

our tenants has been driven by higher utility and maintenance/construction costs. The post-

pandemic market continued to bite particularly in the secondary office and retail sectors.  

The overall valuation of our portfolio has seen a slight contraction, down by 2% to £147m for 23/24.  

Over and above the UK real estate market stagnation, strategic disposals of assets being the main 

reason for this change.  At £11.27m our gross rental income has held its ground well, albeit being a 

touch down at £190k (1.65%) from last year. The successful launch of a focussed lease review 

programme has enabled us to engage more closely and meaningfully with our occupiers, tenants 

and their customers, to support them with refreshed and more flexible terms and arrangements.  

This has also supported improved service charge management and recovery. The upsurge in global 

utility costs (gas/electric) alongside increasing repairs and maintenance costs, (particularly around 

some of the ageing assets in our estate) have resulted in operational management and running costs 

increasing and a credible net income of £5.68m, albeit down from last year. Bad debt has been 

driven down from £3.2m to £0.9m. With no significant issues in occupancy levels at 95.5%;  

availability is 4.5% and the portfolio remains well-let. Investments into new light industrial and 

workspace will greatly help us as a city as demand levels continue to be high.  

The Council’s Corporate Estate portfolio has been built over many decades of investment, it’s fair to 

say that we are in it for the long-haul. We will continue to invest and dis-invest locally, pro-actively  

managing our portfolio purposefully, yet empathetically, to ensure we are doing what we can to 

support our tenants and the long-term economic prosperity of Leicester — operating our portfolio 

commercially, in line with the prevailing markets, yet with an embedded Environmental, Social, and 

strong Governance (ESG) reducing carbon in our buildings to meet our net zero targets.  With our 

emerging Heart of Leicester Strategy, and working together, the city’s future remains bright, and we 

will continue to ride market storms.  

 

Matthew Wallace BSc (Hons), MBA, DipProjMan, FRICS 

Director of Estates and Building Services  

71



4 

2. Background to the Council’s Land and Property Holdings 

 

Leicester City council holds a diverse portfolio of land and property assets ranging from historic 

buildings such as the 13th century Guildhall to the more recent strategic investments for The 

Corporate Estate of the Haymarket Shopping Centre in 2019/20 and The Heathers Industrial Estate in 

2023/24. For the most-part, however, the wider estate owned by the council is held and managed in 

order to provide front line services for the city’s residents in the form of homes, schools, leisure 

centres, and neighbourhood centres as well as Green Flag parks, playgrounds and open spaces 

providing areas for leisure and recreation. There is also critical infrastructure such as bridges, 

footpaths, cycle paths and car parks that aid the smooth running of the city.  

The grouping of land and property assets, known as The Corporate Estate, is held for commercial 

reasons. It is the council’s investment portfolio that is managed in-house, and provides local 

businesses with commercial premises, offices, shops, industrial units, and workspaces for new 

business start-ups, which generates an income for the council that is used to re-invest in its services.  

 

The Council’s Property Holdings 

 

HOLDING   DETAILS 

 The Operational Estate  

  

  

 The land and property held to support the main business of the Council, including: 

• property utilised for the provision of front-line services to the public such 
as museums, libraries, leisure centres, and neighbourhood centres; 

• playgrounds, parks and open spaces; 

• property leased to community groups and charities; 

• property occupied by council staff in order to support delivery of council 
services – such as City Hall, Town Hall and council depots; 

• cultural, historical and heritage assets. 

 Schools   Includes both community and maintained schools as well as academy schools. 

 Housing   The council’s housing stock.       

 Highways    Includes roads, footpaths and bridges as well as land and buildings that may be  

 required for future transport development schemes.    

 Strategic/Regeneration   Property and land acquired for strategic purposes, to promote regeneration and  

 redevelopment of the city. 

 The Corporate Estate  The land and properties held by the council for income generation which supports 

general Council services, rather than to provide accommodation for the council or 

direct services to the communities. Provides a wide range of accommodation for 

local businesses. 

  

This annual report focusses on the performance of The Corporate Estate for the financial year from  

1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024.  

72



5 

 

The Corporate Estate — A Long-Term Investment  

Leicester City Council has been investing in land and property for generations, enabled by the special 

powers afforded through parliament, including the 1956 Leicester Corporation Act that gave the 

Leicester Corporation the powers to buy, sell and manage land and property for highways, education, 

planning and investment purposes, and more recently — in terms of holding and managing land and 

property for investment purposes — the Local Government Act 1972.  

The council’s Corporate Estate, and our investment in and management of land and property, has 

benefited from our successful long-term strategic planning of the portfolio. As opposed to other local 

authorities that in recent years have been taking significant risk when it comes to their investment in 

property and continue to be reliant on their investments to shore up gaps in their budgets.  

Whilst other investors are significantly influenced by how the market is performing at any given time, 

as a public body we are able to take a long-term view of the needs of the city — something that other 

investors are not always able to consider. The benefits we receive today, in terms of a growth in value 

and income to the council, along with our ability to bring forward land for redevelopment, are a direct 

result of the prudent investment and wise management of The Corporate Estate portfolio throughout 

the years.  

Our FY 2023/24 report demonstrates clearly why our long-term views, and balanced approach are 

working well and will continue to do so in the years to come. 

 

 

73



6 

 

The Corporate Estate — the council’s investment portfolio — is a small part of a broad range of 

Leicester City Council land and property holdings, making up 13% of the overall capital asset 

valuation* of the Estates & Building Services estate (excluding housing and highways).  

CHART 1 – ESTATES AND BUILDING SERVICES ASSET BASE 

 

 

The Estates & Building Services (EBS) capital asset base is valued at £1.144bn in 2023/24 

(this includes: Schools (42%), Operational (37%), Corporate Estate (13%), Regeneration (8%)).  

The EBS capital asset base excludes Highways and Public Realm (£1.8bn) and Housing (£1.2bn).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

* The FY23/24 Annual Audit of Assets is in progress and will complete in October 2024. For the 

purpose of this report, the figures contained within for valuation will not be formally signed off until 

reported to Governance & Audit Committee in November 2024, therefore all figures and assumptions 

are subject to audit. 

74



7 

Economic Regeneration Workspaces 

 

 

The land and property in The Corporate Estate portfolio is held for investment purposes, e.g. for the 

benefit of the city and the generation of ongoing revenue income to support Council services. There 

are also council managed workspaces that sit outside of The Corporate Estate portfolio that are held 

for economic regeneration purposes and let out to local businesses. Whilst both portfolios generate 

revenue income to invest back into council services, and both benefit from high occupancy and 

strong demand, it is useful to understand the difference between the two portfolios in terms of their 

aims.  

The economic regeneration workspace portfolio focuses primarily on supporting the growth of 

priority economic sectors with the service directly managing six workspaces: LCB Depot, Makers 

Yard, Phoenix Square Workspace, Dock, Dock 2 and Gresham Works. This provides a total of  

90,000 sq ft lettable space for local small businesses. Two workspaces with outsourced management 

via East Midlands Chamber — Leicester Food Park and Friars Mill — provide a further 36,500 sq ft of 

lettable space. Several new workspaces are in development, including three further Dock 

workspaces which opened in September 2024, and Pilot House due to open in Summer 2025. 

These workspaces are effective in delivering the following:  

• Helping to reposition Leicester’s economy to grow knowledge-based sectors, including creative 

industries and innovation/technology businesses.  

• Significant job creation performance, supporting over 800 jobs in tenant businesses, rising to over 

1,100 jobs with the delivery of the new schemes when they ultimately reach full occupancy. 

• Providing a physical focus for clustering, networking, and collaborative working — there is 

evidence that this increases the survival rate for small businesses who are tenants. For example, the 

75



8 

LCB Depot has been driving the delivery of Design Season over recent years, an annual showcase for 

the city’s design strengths. 

Workspaces have proved an effective mechanism to kick start the delivery of regeneration areas, 

particularly through raising investor confidence and ultimately stimulating other private sector 

investment. This has been the case with St George’s Cultural Quarter, Pioneer Park/Space City and 

Waterside, where workspaces have been the first key regeneration intervention. 

The Corporate Estate on the other hand consists of a diverse portfolio with a range of long- and 

short-term leases in order to balance out risk. It is managed as a commercial operation whilst 

making a significant contribution to the council’s commitment to support the local economy, 

maintaining a retail presence in the city centre and neighbourhoods, and supporting local businesses 

by providing a range of accommodation with space for new business start-up to grow on locally, 

maintaining good employment prospects in the city.  

The largest single sector portfolio in terms of numbers is the office portfolio with 425 lettable units, 

whilst the four managed workspace buildings house more than 250 lettable units. There are 374 

industrial units and almost 300 retail units — more than a third of which are neighbourhood shops. 

The Corporate Estate all sectors have remained reasonably static year-on-year. There are a further 

165 ‘other’ assets that are neither office, industrial nor retail sectors which includes assets such as 

agricultural holdings. 

 

    

76



9 

3. Executive Summary 

 

The commercial property market in the UK is well-established and, despite the commercial real estate 

market experiencing a steep drop in buyer activity in FY2023/24, recent market reports suggest it is 

expected to recover modestly in FY2024/25 albeit with some variation by sector. The downward shift 

in interest rates in August 24 is expected to improve investment opportunities from a wide range of 

investors including local authorities, pension funds, and high net-worth individuals in FY24/25.  

The market offers a wide spread of yields that are influenced by both the quality of the assets (e.g., 

location, sector, condition, supply, and demand) as well as the associated investment risk. A low-risk 

investment for example would be well-located and leased at a market rent to financially stable tenants 

on a lease that has more than 10 years until expiry. Whilst net yield is important in determining the 

actual profitable return achieved, running costs can fluctuate dependent on how efficiently land and 

property is managed. As a result, gross yield is generally used to compare the financial performance 

of property investments. 5-6% is considered ‘good’ rental yield with above 6% being considered ‘very 

good’. This years’ results of 7.66% gross yield demonstrates that the council’s commercial real estate 

holdings are considered ‘very good’ against a difficult UK financial backdrop. 

The Corporate Estate is a long-term investment portfolio consisting of the land and property held and 

directly managed by Leicester City Council predominantly for income generation to support wider 

Council services and for the most-part, let out at market (or market-competitive) rates.  

The portfolio is extremely broad and well-balanced — consisting of land, small business units, office 

space, car parks, industrial units, and city centre retail units/neighbourhood shops that are leased out 

to private sector organisations across the city. In addition, the council leases out a significant amount 

of land that houses a variety of properties — from warehouses and factories to sports facilities and 

sub-stations — as well as agricultural holdings such as farms and grazing land.  

The corporate estate:  

• Continues to generate a stable and sustainable revenue income contribution for the council — 

providing market-competitive returns. Key economic factors such as inflation and utility costs 

have impacted net income in FY23/24, however yields are strong and above benchmark averages. 

• Is a diverse portfolio — in line with the council’s investment strategy that requires a balance of 

security, liquidity, and yield to minimise risk.  

• Certain assets require significant capital investment in order to maintain overall asset values; 

necessary investment in repairs and maintenance has impacted running costs.  

• Is wholly invested in our local economic area (Leicester and Leicestershire). 

• Includes land and property that is held for economic regeneration purposes (although the capital 

values are included in this report, income from these investments is not included as the properties 

are managed separately).  

• With a GIA (floor space) accounting for 17% of the council’s estate holdings*, has a continued and 

significant role to play in our commitment to address the climate emergency. 

• Supports the local economy and local businesses by providing a range of competitively priced 

accommodation.  
 

*Excludes Housing, Highways and the council’s investment in pooled property funds that are 

governed by Treasury Management.  

 

 

77



10 

Summary of Performance for the Year Ended 31 March 2024 

   

*Denotes very good performance against gross yield Benchmarks 

Yield Benchmarks used:  

• CCLA Local Authorities’ Property Fund gross yield 4.84% (Annual Report FY2023/24). Down -13.17% on FY22/23 
 

Key Performance Factors 2023/2024 2022/2023 2021/2022 2020/2021 

Value of the Corporate Estate £147,221,180 £151,109,437 £123,031,773 £112,287,183 

Gross Income £11,270,686 £11,462,492 £8,337,033 £7,484,007 

Running / Management Costs £5,593,788 £4,991,567 £2,479,083 £2,138,819 

Net Income (contribution to 
the General Fund) 

£5,676,898 £6,470,925 £5,857,950 £5,345,188 

Net Yield 3.86% 4.28% 4.76% 4.76% 

Gross Yield 7.66% 7.59% 6.78% 6.67% 

Occupancy 95.50% 96% 95% 95.50% 

% of the Council’s Net 
revenue Budget 

1.57% 2.02% 2.03% 1.92% 

 

£147.2m 

Estate Value

£11.27m 

Gross 
Income

£5.59m 

Running / 
Managment 

Costs

£5.68m 
Net Income 

(Contribution to 
the General 

Fund)

*7.66% 

Gross Yield

95.5% 

Occupancy

1.57%
of the Council's 

Net revenue 
budget 

(low risk)

78



11 

4. Understanding Our Corporate Estate in FY2023/24 

 

Portfolio Key Facts 

 

375 Sites  

(including land) 

 

1,263 Lettable Units  

(including land) 

 

£147.2m  

Valuation* at 31 March 2024 

 

1.63m sq ft  

Total Gross Internal Area (GIA (floor space)) 

 

Accounts for 17% of the total GIA  

(floor space) of the estate owned by the council 

 

120.2 Hectares  

(excluding farm and agricultural land) 

 

£414,140 p/a Largest single rent  

(3.67% of gross rent) 

 

The Industrial Sector continues to be the largest single sector 

by GIA and value  
 

 

 

 

* The FY23/24 Annual Audit of Assets is in progress and will complete in October 2024. For the 

purpose of this report, the figures contained within for valuation will not be formally signed off until 

reported to Governance & Audit Committee in November 2024, therefore all figures and assumptions 

are subject to audit. 

  

79



12 

Scope of the Estate 

 

The Corporate Estate property portfolio provides a broad range of commercial space across the 

traditional office, retail, and industrial sectors, as well as a significant offering in terms of other less 

traditional space for rent - including advertising hoardings, substations, grazing land, farms, garages, 

and car parks. 

The chart below shows that, in terms of actual sites, the Council holds 59% of its investment holdings 

in the industrial, retail and office sectors with the other 41% being a wide spread of other land and 

property (including a number of ground leases and long leases, land, car parks, substations and 

communication masts, as well as farmland and a handful of residential property (temporarily let while 

held for re-development purposes)). 

 CHART 2 – CORPORATE ESTATES SITES

 

Sites 

Sector Sites 

Industrial 109  

Office 39 

Retail 73 

Other 155 

Total 375 

 

The classification of the estate looks different when we look at lettable units rather than sites. The 

broad range of assets held in the portfolio, including land that is let on long-term ground leases, 

provides the council with a low-risk investment return.  

 

 

Industrial
109

Office
39

Other
155

Retail
73

Corporate Estate Sites

80



13 

 

As shown in the chart below, the largest single portfolio held by the council for investment purposes 

is the secondary office market portfolio with 425 lettable units – representing 34% of our available 

units.  

 

CHART 3 – CORPORATE ESTATE LETTABLE UNITS  

 

 

Sector Lettable Units 

Industrial (30%) 374  

Office (34%) 425 

Retail (23%) 299 

Other (13%) 165 

Total 1,263 

Industrial
374

Office
425

Other
165

Retail
299

Corporate Estate Lettable Units

81



14 

Compared side by side with the CCLA Local Authorities’ Annual Report for FY23/24 we can see in the 

Chart below, that there is a shift in sector comparators towards Industrial sector investment and 

away from Office investment with retail investment being reasonably static against last year.  

 

Industrial units make up 44.55% of the CCLA portfolio as compared to 30% of The Corporate Estate. 

The council have similarly made significant capital investment in industrial sector growth for future 

years to develop new industrial sites in the future – which will increase this investment figure over 

the next two years. Sites such as the Former Ian Marlow Centre on Blackbird Road are anticipated to 

complete in October 2024 and will support ESG through green leases. 

The Office sector makes up 18.7% of the CCLA portfolio compared to 34% in The Corporate Estate. 

The significant difference here is the movement of Grade B/secondary operational offices into The 

Corporate Estate for letting into the office market. This has proved difficult to let post-covid, due to 

market requirements for Grade A offices, smaller office footprints, with ESG being at the forefront of 

requirements with net zero carbon buildings being in highest demand. However, the market is 

showing a slight upturn in Grade B office interest locally especially for training and education and 

some government office purposes. In line with the local market, the council’s strategy remains firm 

in ensuring that our office stock is asset reviewed with a priority focus on disposal to the HRA for 

Housing re-development wherever possible and with meeting the highest EPC ratings. There is a 

market shift in an increase in the return to the workplace, with most companies now insisting on a 

minimum presence in the office of 2-3 working days (driven largely by efficiency, mental health 

impacts, and team-building contact for junior members of staff/apprentices/new employees and 

graduates).  

Investment in the Retail sector by the CCLA’s fund of 18.34% compares to 23% in The Corporate 

Estate with the CCLA’s main retail investment in large out of town retail warehousing nationally 

compared to the predominantly local retail and neighbourhood retail shops within the council’s 

investment portfolio. The investment in the Haymarket Shopping Centre continues to have a positive 

full-year impact on net income in FY23/24 and capital asset value.  

This emphasises the fact that, whilst our portfolio remains reasonably well-balanced across all 

categories, the council’s investment in the Retail sector is not purely for income generation. The 

council continues to hold and invest in our Retail portfolio for strategic purposes and to support the 

local economy by providing a range of accommodation for our city centre and neighbourhoods. 

   

CCLA ASSET ALLOCATION – FY23/24 COMPARED TO THE CORPORATE ESTATE FY23/24  

 

CCLA     LCC CORPORATE ESTATE 

Industrial   44.55%  Industrial  30% 

Office   18.71%  Office  34% 

Retail Warehousing 16.47%   

Retail   1.87%  Retail  23% 

Other   18.4%  Other  13% 

 

We have continued to support local businesses by maintaining a sizeable Retail portfolio consisting 

of city centre retail, neighbourhood shops, and other retail spaces at competitive rents. Alongside 

this we continue to offer a considerable portfolio of secondary Office space and managed 

82



15 

workspaces to our existing city-wide portfolio that offers around 250 lettable units comprising 

predominantly small office and workshop/industrial units.  

 

Additionally, the council’s strategy continues to include a growing number of prime Economic 

Regeneration workspaces in the city which can compete with the secondary market offering.  

 

Central government’s Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards (MEES) Legislation came into force with 

effect from 1 April 2023. The aim of MEES regulation for commercial property is to help meet the UK 

government’s target to reduce emissions to net zero by 2050. Announcements by the outgoing 

government in FY23/24 suggested a ‘softening’ of the legislation, however, this has not been 

defined. With a new incoming government, it will be interesting to monitor whether stringent 

legislation will impact the investment portfolio. A minimum EPC rating of E for all commercial real 

estate lettings, requires that the council continue to review and invest, where economically viable, in 

the improved sustainability of the Corporate Estate portfolio and older Regeneration units to 

maintain capital asset values and the ability to continue to lease older properties. Whilst all 

properties meet the current MEES legislation, the EPC rating becomes more challenging to meet by 

2027 when the minimum EPC rating increases to C and by 2030, B.  

83



16 

CHART 4 — GIA BY ASSET CATEGORY (SQ FT) 

 

Retail = 457,702 (down slightly from 466,001 LY) 

Office = 474,285 (up slightly from 454,264 LY) 

Industrial = 478,362 (no movement from 478,362 LY) 

Other = 222,585 (down slightly from 217,849 LY) 

 

Chart 4, above, shows the lettable floor space available and, like the rest the report, is categorised 

using the traditional sectors of Office, Retail, Industrial and Other. In terms of floor space, 86% of the 

space on offer is Industrial, Retail and Office (static against last year, but slightly up in office and 

slightly down in retail exposure). 57% of floor space offered by our retail sector and industrial sector 

portfolios which is reasonably static against last year. Office space has increased slightly by 20,021 

sq. ft due to additional office space from the operational estate moving over into The Corporate 

Estate as a result of hybrid working. Available space has increased overall by 16,458 sq ft 

predominantly due to increased office space. 

 

 

 

 

Industrial
478,362 

29%

Office
474,285 

29%
Other

222,585 
14%

Retail
457,702 

28%

Industrial Office Other Retail

84



17 

CHART 5 — GIA BY ASSET CATEGORY (SQ FT)  

 

 

Chart 5a INDUSTRIAL: (left, above) Illustrates the breakdown of the Industrial portfolio across the 

estate —which represents 29% of the lettable space. The council’s estate is almost wholly ‘rack 

rented’ or units on long term leases. Long term leases, along with the ground leases, require little 

support and provide good security of tenure.                                                                                                                            

 

Chart 5b OFFICE: (middle, above) Illustrates the makeup of the floor area of our rented office space 

— which is 29% of our whole estate. With a focus on new business growth, a growing proportion of 

our office estate is attributable to managed workspace units (70%). Rack rent makes up 21% of the 

available office space whilst normally this would be growing in the office sector for onward business 

growth, the market demand has slowed for office space and particularly Grade B office space – this 

is reflected here. Ground rents are static between last year to this year at 9%.  

 

Chart 5c RETAIL: (right, above) Making up 28% of our overall corporate estate floor space, the chart 

shows the dispersed nature of our retail space across the city, with 32% of our shop units located 

within local communities. Our city centre retail estate — including the market — remains significant 

in the City, and accounts for almost two thirds of the space on offer, with over 457,702 sq ft of retail 

units available across the city. The diverse spread of locations also spreads risk and places the 

council in a strong position during financial or market uncertainty. 

 

 

85



18 

 

 

 

86



19 

 

  

87



20 

5. VALUATION 

 

The valuation methodology has been brought in line with the RICS Code of Practice for the 

Commercial Property Sector and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 

in the United Kingdom with effect from 1 April 2023, where 20% of the Council’s real estate portfolio 

was re-valued and the remaining 80% were valued through applying a 4% RPI indexation.  

This change in valuation methodology combined with market impacts has resulted in a reduction in 

the valuation of the Council’s commercial real estate portfolio of £3.9m, from £151.1m in FY 

2022/23 to £147.2m in 23/24.  

The Corporate Estate represents 13% of the EBS £1.144 billion valued assets in FY 2023/24. The 

Corporate Estate Portfolio comprises traditional sectors of Industrial, Office, Retail and Other. 

 

CHART 6 – VALUE OF THE CORPORATE ESTATE – FY2023/24 

 
 

Turning our attention to wider UK market, the RICS Modus Property Journal reported that all three 

mainstream sectors of the commercial property market suffered steep declines in buyer activity in 

FY23/24 compared to FY22/23. Retail volumes were down by around 30%, while office and industrial 

investment both slumped by around 50%. 

Alongside the drop-off in activity levels, capital values also fell noticeably in FY23/24, with month-

on-month declines being recorded throughout the entirety of the second half of last year – slipping 

by a total of 3.5% across all sectors. Compares to Leicester’s capital value decrease of 2.65%. 

This brought the cumulative decline in headline values since mid-2022 to 22%, according to CBRE. 

That said, not all mainstream sectors saw valuations retreat further during FY23/24, with the 

industrial sector posting a small recovery of 1.4%. However, this followed what had been a sharp fall 

of 21% during the prior year.  

Meanwhile, across the retail sector in aggregate, capital values slipped by a further 4.2% last year, 

extending on a decline of 8% registered the year before. 

88

https://www.cbre.co.uk/insights/figures/uk-monthly-index-february-2024


21 

The largest decline in values, however, came in the Office sector, which chalked up an 11.5% drop 

over FY23/24 following a 12% decline FY22/23. 

These unquestionably weak trends are also reflected in the share prices of many real-estate 

investment trusts, with British Land and Land Securities down by a respective 30% and 15% 

compared to FY22/23. 

Headline capital values – while potentially coming under some further downward pressure over the 

first half of FY23/24 – are anticipated to stabilise inFY24/25. The net balance for the 12-month 

capital value expectations, taken from the RICS UK Commercial Property Monitor, stands at just -7% 

across all sectors. This reading should be interpreted as respondents envisaging a virtually flat 

outturn for the year to come. 

Changes to The Corporate Estate’s valuation in FY23/24 focuses on the following: 

Leicester City Council’s Corporate Estate’s Market is secondary in nature, and it is similar to the 

other East Midlands cities in that regard. Looking at the Leicester and Leicestershire market in 

FY23/24, the trends listed below emerged: 

 

• Industrial Annual rent growth has decelerated since last year to today’s rent amid a 

cooldown in tenant demand and rising vacancy.     

• Office rents remained stable at 2022 levels, with prime values at £20 per sq ft and secondary 

rents at £14 per sq ft. Comparables sought from CoStar indicated the prime office rents in 

the city centre are £20 per sq ft, while secondary rental values are around £14 per sq ft, 

excluding incentives. 

• Retail Asking Rent in the city centre is around £25 per sq ft, with vacancy rate in the region 

of 389,234 sq ft which equates 3.6% of the market. 

 

Take-up in the Leicester Office market moved back above the 10-year average in FY23/24, with total 

activity of 366,740 sq ft. Sales and lettings were primarily focused on better quality second hand 

space, with two-thirds of activity out of town. 

  

The largest letting was at Granite House on Watermead Business Park, Thurmaston, where E.ON 

took 24,863 sq ft. The largest transaction in the city centre to an occupier was the freehold purchase 

of Bankfield House on New Walk, by Planet Education Networks of 14,554 sq ft. 

  

Supply tightened in FY23/24, falling to 805,322 sq ft, with the focus being on second hand space, 

which accounted for 93% of stock on the market. Grade A supply overall stood at 90,840 sq ft and is 

primarily focused out of town at Carlton Park, Narborough. Supply within the city centre was as low 

as 16,200 sq ft.  

  

Considering the Industrial sector, the take-up in the Leicester industrial market remained above the 

10-year average for the fourth successive year in FY23/24, with total activity of 2.7m sq ft. The ‘Big 

Box’ market continued to see good levels of activity, with six deals totalling 1.25m sq ft. 

  

The largest deal was the 493,000 sq ft build for Persimmon’s timber frame manufacturing subsidiary 

Spring 4, at Garendon Park in Loughborough. Overall, availability in FY23/24 moved up significantly 

to a little over 4.5m sq ft, with the greatest increase being in second hand space coming onto the 

market, and which now stands at a little under 3m sq ft. 

  

89

https://www.rics.org/news-insights/outlook-for-uk-commercial-property-brighter-as-more-respondents-believe-market-has-bottomed-out


22 

Available Grade A space fell slightly to 1m sq ft, with the largest building on the market at the end of 

FY23/24 being the 340,000 sq ft Hinckley 340. However, there are a number of larger buildings 

presently under construction, particularly at Magna Park, Lutterworth, which will hit the market 

during 2024 and increase overall availability by almost 1.6m sq ft. 

  

The above market summary indicates that Innes England’s Leicester City commercial market has 

certainly started to recover from the Covid-19 downturn, and a steady growth in all sectors within 

the Commercial Market are evidenced. (Source: Innes England Market-Insite-2024 Brochure).  

 

However, CoSTAR UK Market Insight for FY23/24 – Leicester City, commented that capital market 

valuations were down across all sectors (Industrial -0.2%; Office -3.0%; Retail -4.6%). Sale versus 

asking price was also down significantly, with Retail down on average -8.9% with the lowest at  

-14.2%; Office was down on average -0.4% with the lowest -18.8%; whereas Industrial was up 6.1% 

on average with the lowest at -20.8%.  

There has been limited movement in The Corporate Estate portfolio in recent years, with the council 

holding 82.5% of its portfolio value in the traditional sectors of industrial, office and retail.  

 

FY23/24 however, saw land values increase significantly increasing the overall value by £6m – mainly 

in the Office sector.  

 

 

Statement by the Valuer for the Year Ending 31 March 2024 

In accordance with the instructions of the Chief Finance Officer we have valued the 

Corporate Estate portfolio as at 31 March 2024. The valuation has been prepared in 

accordance with the RICS Red Book Global Standards dated 31 January 2022 published by 

the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) and to conform with the disclosure 

requirements of that publication. We understand that the Valuation is used for Financial 

Statement purposes. 

The value of the Corporate Estate portfolio asset valuations carried out in the year ending 

31 March 2024 is £147,221,180 (One Hundred and Forty-Seven Million, Two Hundred and 

Twenty-One Thousand and One Hundred and Eighty Pounds). 

The Valuation is for the sole use of the Council. It is confidential to the Council its Officers 

and Professional Advisors. Details of the basis of our valuation and the individual 

properties are set out in the valuation report dated 31 March 2024. 

 

Gbolahan Solaymon MRICS and RICS Registered Valuer 

Senior Estates Valuation Surveyor 

RICS No. 1119552 

 

90



23 

Although a complex changing picture, the overall capital asset valuation* of the council’s 

corporate estate portfolio in FY23/24 is down slightly at 2% or £3.9 million in FY23/24 — from 

£151 million to £147 million over the last year — mainly due to changes in lettings strategy and 

the sale of six post-pandemic office buildings. Generally, values were down too in the Retail sector 

mainly due to market risk factors relating to challenging rental values, availability and rental risk 

factors such as strategic redevelopment of land. Industrial values remained reasonably static year 

on year and Office increased significantly due to a mixture of land value increases, rent and 

changes in occupation and the addition of six properties, five of which had previously not been 

valued (as under £100k) moved into the capital asset pool for the Corporate Estate.  

 

Chart 6 above, shows the impact of the acquisitions on sector values, with the ‘other’ sector now 

representing a smaller proportion, at around 17.5% of overall portfolio value. Whilst land and 

property values have remained reasonably static in the industrial sector, the sector continues to 

make up around one third of the value of the portfolio, topping sector capital asset value at  

£43 million (last year Retail was the top sector in capital asset value at £48.5 million).  

In summary, official estimates now suggest that the UK economy fell into a technical recession – 

defined as two consecutive quarters of falling output – during the second half of last year.  

 

Placing substantial stress on households' finances, consumer price growth averaged 7.4% in 

FY23/24, with intense inflationary pressures prompting considerable tightening in monetary policy 

from the Bank of England.  

Given the significance of this, it is somewhat surprising that consumer spending managed to avoid 

an outright contraction, although the meagre 0.3% rise over the past 12 months represents the 

softest annual increase since 2011; excluding the sudden drop during the first year of the pandemic. 

Although the UK economy's overall momentum was at best sluggish last year, the mild recession 

that occurred could still be classified as a relatively soft landing given the steepest rise in policy 

interest rates set by the Bank of England over a two-year period since the late 1990s. 

This – arguably – resilient picture was, nonetheless, not mirrored across commercial property 

markets. Data from CoStar shows total volumes came in at £26bn during 2023, the weakest annual 

trend since 2009 and down around 46% compared to 2022. 

 

91



24 

UK commercial property sales volumes. Source: CoStar 
This dreary outcome was not unique to the UK of course, with rising interest rates in many parts of 

the world placing strain on commercial real-estate markets. In the US, for instance, commercial 

property investment levels sunk 56% year on year in FY23/24. 

Despite negative economic factors, felt sharply across all UK commercial real estate markets 

modest recovery is predicted next year, although the impact will vary across the UK.  

For now, the broad assessment for the coming year is that total commercial real-estate investment 

volumes should recover modestly compared to last year, although with this coming from such a low 

base, buyer activity will likely remain subdued when viewed in a longer-term context. 

Meanwhile, headline capital values – while potentially coming under some further downward 

pressure over the first half of this year – should then stabilise towards the end of 2024. 

Indeed, the net balance for 12-month capital value expectations, again taken from the RICS UK 

Commercial Property Monitor, stands at just –7% across all sectors. This reading should be 

interpreted as respondents envisaging a virtually flat outturn for the year to come. 

Of course, not all portions of the market exhibit the same prognosis for the year ahead. With the 

industrial sector still displaying solid occupier fundamentals – even if tenant demand is unlikely to 

regain quite the same exuberance of previous years – this should provide a firm foundation for a 

recovery in buyer activity. 

Indeed, industrial rental growth is running at an annual pace in excess of 5%, signalling that the 

sector continues to display strong income-producing potential for landlords. 

Meanwhile, although the Office and Retail sectors nationally have also posted positive rental growth 

over the past 12 months – 2% for the former and 1% across the latter – the underlying picture is a bit 

more complicated. 

For one, rising incentive levels across both – as reported continuously by RICS members in recent 

years – are masking trends in headline rental indices, at least to a certain degree. 

Moreover, there remains a huge divide between the so-called prime portions of these sectors and 

the secondary ones. At the prime end, occupier demand is generally holding up well. Knight Frank 

research for instance shows nearly 85% of office take-up last year was accounted for by new or 

grade-A space.  

Conversely, both secondary office and retail properties continue to see rising vacancy rates amid the 

ongoing challenges presented by the shift towards remote working and online shopping. As such, 

RICS members in aggregate anticipate further falls in rents, and capital values, across these types of 

property. 

Therefore, even though the general market is likely to begin to recover slowly as cyclical 

macroeconomic pressures ease, there will remain significant structural weakness in certain sectors 

for the foreseeable future. 

Gbolahan Solaymon, MRICS, RICS Registered Valuer 

Senior Estates Valuation Surveyor,  

RICS No. 1119552 

* The FY23/24 Annual Audit of Assets is in progress and will complete in October 2024. For the purpose of this 

report, the figures contained within for valuation will not be formally signed off until the Governance & Audit 

Committee in November 2024, therefore all figures and assumptions are subject to audit.  

92

https://www.knightfrank.com/research/article/2024-02-05-occupier-demand-for-london-offices-hits-the-highest-level-in-a-decade
https://www.knightfrank.com/research/article/2024-02-05-occupier-demand-for-london-offices-hits-the-highest-level-in-a-decade


25 

PORTFOLIO PERFORMANCE  

 

Occupancy:  

 

Industrial 
 

Office Retail Other 2024 
Average 

2023 
Average 

2022 
Average 

99% 92% 96% 95% 95.5% 96% 95% 
 
For the 2023/24 reporting period, property availability increased slightly over the period by 0.5%. 
This was predominantly due to the contraction of the council’s operational office estate portfolio 
and appropriation to the corporate estate while marketing to let took place.  
 
The overall pace of take-up was very slow in commercial real estate globally. The demand for 
secondary office space in the city was not as buoyant in the first three quarters of 23/24 with the 
market seeing only a slight increase in demand in the last quarter of 2024. Occupation has been 
much slower as tenants move out of old premises, take advantage of their break clauses before they 
move to their new premises.  
 
Investment in property was down in the terms of Commercial property sales volumes, with CoStar 
showing total volumes coming it at £26bn in FY23/24, the weakest annual trend since 2009. Property 
that was anticipated to be sold for office to residential conversion resulted in initial interest, 
however, market asset valuations were attempted to be undercut dramatically as the cost of 
borrowing and cost of construction remained volatile.  
 
Increases in utility costs has also resulted in the contraction of commercial real estate tenants 
particularly in office and retail markets. The contraction represented lost gross rental income of 
£101,430 for the period — 0.9% of the annual gross revenue income based on anticipated market 
rents. This was also felt in both rent and lease renewals where the market is pushing for 
inducement.  
 
Whilst there were a limited number of vacant spaces across each of the sectors, there has been 
some turnover seen across our retail sector, as business owners have chosen to move online, accept 
improved inducements elsewhere and relinquish space by enacting break clauses in favour of 
flexible working. In popular city centre industrial and office workspaces however, availability has 
remained limited with the majority of units being re-let.  
 
City centre retail continues to change and evolve; however, space is at an all-time high. It is 
anticipated that next year, in 2024/25 with interest rates falling for the first time in August 2024, 
that even though the general market is likely to recover slowly as cyclical microeconomic factors 
ease, there will remain significant structural weakness in certain office and retail sectors for the 
foreseeable future. The council’s strategy continues to be pragmatic in terms of strategic value, the 
local plan, ever-greater requirements for supported living and residential housing along with a 
balanced view of leisure and retail offer to support increases in inner-city living and cultural interest. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

93



26 

Revenue Performance: 

 
Without significant change to the portfolio in the last year, the optimisation strategy, along with 
effective investment planning in previous years, ensured that the revenue position remained 
reasonably solid year-on-year.  
 
This echoed the RICS UK Commercial Property monitor, in the last quarter of FY23/24, expressing 
that the commercial real estate market had reached the bottom of the current cycle. There have 
been marginal improvements have been felt across the UK and the market continues to lack 
significant momentum. Prime office rent expectations have gained a greater lead over the secondary 
market. And, occupier and investor demand remains downbeat outside the industrial sector.  
 
The RICS UK Commercial Property Monitor for Q4 FY23/24 revealed some growing confidence in its 

long-term outlook. While mixed, the largest proportion of respondents in Q4 FY23/24 (33%) believe 

that the market has bottomed out, seemingly aiding a slightly more positive long-term outlook. 

While most of the market remains sluggish and lacking momentum, there are clear incremental 

improvements. Occupier demand remained negative overall (-7%), although less so than previously 

(-12% Q3 FY23/24), and although both the office and retail sectors remain relatively weak, sentiment 

has improved from Q3. Industrial demand remains positive although less so from previous highs. 

It should be noted that nationally, prime property continues to outperform secondary units. With 

footfall crucial for retail, as well as energy costs continuing to rise, the location and relative energy 

efficiency of prime units are likely encouraging further positive momentum. 

The outlook for national prime retail rents has, for example, stabilised with the twelve-month 

expectations net balance moving to -4% from a value of -13% in Q3 FY23/24. In fact, this reading 

marks the least negative view on prime retail rents since Q1 of 2018/19. 

When looking at the regional results, the national picture is largely mirrored throughout most parts 

of the country. For London however, the prime office and retail markets stand out as exhibiting 

stronger rental expectations and are firmly in the positive while secondary office space appears to 

be under even greater pressure across the capital.  Industrial in the Midlands is particularly strong. 

Overall investment demand remains relatively soft, evidenced by the all-property investment 

enquiries indicator reporting a net balance reading of -19%. Similarly, overseas investment enquiries 

also continue to slip, with all sectors seeing a decline (to a greater of lesser degree) in Q4 of FY23/24. 

In its Manifesto for the Built Environment, RICS called for a defined national real estate roadmap 

attractive to inward investment. This would be a holistic national strategy which attracts and deploys 

inward foreign investment on a national scale, benefitting the whole economy. 

There was a notable improvement to sentiment in credit conditions reporting a much flatter -5% 

reading, compared to the significantly more negative -44% and -75% seen in Q2 and Q3 of FY23/24, 

respectively. 

RICS Senior Economist, Tarrant Parsons, said: “Current conditions remain challenging across the UK 

commercial property market, with investor demand still being weighed down by the tighter lending 

climate and uncertain outlook for values. At the same time, relatively weak momentum with respect 

to economic activity more generally is taking its toll on tenant demand, with the ongoing structural 

challenges facing parts of the office and retail sectors also hampering market sentiment. That said, 

the significant turnaround in expectations for monetary policy in the second quarter of FY24/25, 

provide a reason for cautious optimism going forward, and the latest results do point to a more 

stable backdrop for credit conditions coming through.” 

94

https://www.rics.org/news-insights/rics-launches-new-manifesto-for-the-built-environment-ahead-of-p


27 

For the council’s corporate estate, FY23/24 followed the national trend with gross income down just 
under £200k from £11.46m to £11.27m. Gross rental income losses were due to mainly from 
property sales with leases. Predominantly, as result of retraction by De Montfort University’s office 
holdings at Leicester Castle as they sought to tighten their exposure to external leases; along with a 
retraction of the Council’s own office space plus the sale of 10 York Road.  
 
Quarterly returns as measured in the MSCI UK Quarterly Property Index, the largest UK direct real  
estate sample recorded returns of 0.54% for March 2024. Industrial was the best performing sector  
with a 3-month return of 1.12%. Retail sector recorded returns of 1.06%. Other sector recorded 
returns of 0.63%. The Hotel sector recorded returns of 0.16%. Residential sector recorded returns of 
0.13% and Office sector recorded returns of negative 0.51%. Income return was stable in line with the 
previous quarters at 1.20%. 
 
In the corporate estate the industrial sector mirrored that of the MSCI UK Quarterly Property Index, 
being the best performing sector, up overall by 10.78% or £311,882 on FY22/23. With marginal retail 
returns of £54,835 due predominantly to a solid second full year results of the Haymarket Shopping 
Centre. The office sector recorded lower returns predominantly due to availability, while the lowest 
return was in the ‘other’ sector – down 13% or -£377,199 on last year with the main drivers for this 
being a significant rent-fee development period and the sale of an asset. 
 

Gross Rental Income - Corporate Estate Income by Sector:  

 

The chart below shows the sector-by-sector gross rental income for the last decade. The corporate 

estate, in line with other UK property results dipped slightly overall.  

CHART 7 – CORPORATE ESTATE RENTAL INCOME BY YEARS 

 

 

The optimisation of The Corporate Estate has resulted in general improved gross income across all 

sectors, with industrial being least impacted by the pandemic strategically targeted first, showed a 

healthy increase.  

95



28 

Chart 8 below, shows the percentage of gross revenue income generated by each of the sectors. 

 

 

The top five gross income generators represent £1.179m or 10.5% of the corporate estate.  

Net revenue contribution continues to be hindered by increases in utility costs, availability, and the 

costs of repairing and maintaining the estate.  

Maintenance and building quality/improvement plays a significant role in the short-, medium- and 

long-term quality of our estate and an improved commitment to maintenance and sustainability of 

The Corporate Estate remains a significant investment strategy. As we continue to focus on ESG and 

the government’s implementation of the Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards in the forthcoming 

year, a further commitment to meeting and wherever economically viable, exceeding the Minimum 

Energy Efficiency Standards has been made through the introduction of the Cleaner Greener 

programme. EPC ratings will meet the legislative requirements and will continue in earnest along with 

additional capital investment in both understanding the general condition of our estate and in 

responding to our climate action plan and sustainability targets.  

 

Financial Year 2023/24 

Gross Revenue Income  Running/Management Costs Net Revenue Contribution 

£11,270,686 £5,593,788 £5,676,898 

  

96



29 

Market Rents 

According to the East Midlands Market Insite 2024 report issued by Innes England, the industrial 

market continues to deliver strong results, with good occupier demand, rising rents, generating the 

confidence for developer and investor support with new supply.  

Derby has a strong occupier base, with Rolls Royce and the Railway related industries and is 

diversifying, with the largest transaction being HelloFresh (430,000 sq ft) at SmartParc’s specialist 

food manufacturing campus. St Modwen’s Phase 2 development, at St Modwen Park ensured that 

Grade A availability remained healthy with 145,000 sq ft of that phase already let. Prime industrial 

rents have grown 40% over the last 2 years and secondary rents 37%. 

Prime office take-up across Derby and Leicester were above the 10-year average, so reports of the 

demise of the secondary office market are not reflected in our data. Investment volumes reflected 

the lack of activity again in FY23/24 and it’s no surprise that two of Innes England’s largest deals 

were the sale of a multi-let industrial estate of 165,700 sq ft and the acquisition of a new build PRS 

scheme, comprising 34 units, both market sectors in strong demand. 

Despite continued economic pressures, the UK and East Midlands retail sector has experienced a 

brighter outlook over the course of FY23/24 than in previous years, however, it is still the most 

challenging sector.  

 

National retail vacancy rates across high streets, shopping centres and retail parks have reached 

their lowest point since the first half of 2021 at an average of 13.27%, with the East Midlands sitting 

at 15%. Whilst shop closures have reached their highest level since 2020, the amount of retail 

openings achieved their highest level since 2014, reflecting our reputation as a ‘nation of 

shopkeepers’. National and regional chains continued to rationalise their high street portfolios with 

local independents taking advantage of the rebased rents.  

The new Rateable Value assessments came into effect in April 2023 reducing many rates bills for 

both national, regional, and independent occupiers. Following the Autumn Statement, many 

retailers were delighted to hear that the Small Business Rates multiplier will be frozen at 49.9p until 

April 2025 and the Retail, Hospitality and Leisure scheme will be extended for the fifth year running, 

providing eligible properties and businesses with up to 75% rates relief up to £110,000 of Business 

Rates per business. 

Whilst national headline rents have not yet returned to pre-pandemic levels (and, it might be some 

time before they do), net effective rents have almost returned to figures being achieved before the 

pandemic. It is important to note both headline and net effective rents have seen increases from 

FY22/23, having improved year on year by 3.3% and 2.5% respectively. 

FY23/24 saw another retail giant fall with the failure of Wilko’s significantly affecting many parades, 

retail pitches and local shopping centres where they were anchoring tenants. To the relief of some 

landlords, Poundland and B&M have agreed to take on 71 and 51 stores respectively, with 56 stores 

already reopened and trading as Poundland. This leaves over 200 store futures uncertain, with 

landlords working creatively with occupiers to find a solution. 

Roadside retail continues to flourish, with existing operators remaining acquisitive and more 

roadside operators entering the market. However, rising costs of construction have led to an 

increase in rents being demanded by developers, which coupled with delays in the planning process 

has created a lag in delivery. 

 

97



30 

Leicester 
 
Retail performance within Leicester was mixed, with Highcross entering receivership in March 2023 
and the centre seeing a number of notable closures including Ted Baker and L’Occitane. Despite the 
troubled financial situation, there were positives with Holland & Barrett, Ann Summers moving from 
Haymarket and Breitling opening throughout the year, with Luke 1977 relocating to the former 
Sharps store.  
 
Other notable openings within Leicester City Centre include the reopening of the former Wilko’s on 
Charles Street as Poundland, Roxy Ball Room opening in the former DW Sports on Humberstone 
Gate and Shoezone opening along Gallowtree Gate, in the former Barnardo’s premises. Varanasi, a 
regional Indian restaurant, has opened a 6,000 sq ft restaurant along High Street in the former Red 
Hot World Buffet. Finally, Pragnell has opened new premises along Market Street.  
 
In contrast, Fosse Park continues to go from strength to strength with Dreams, Natuzzi, and Designer 
Sofas opening within the former Argos store, which has been reconfigured to provide 3 in line units. 
New Look has relocated into the former Outfit premises, with works currently being undertaken at 
their former unit. Footasylum has refurbished their existing unit between JD Sports and River Island, 
which included an expansion from 4,000 sq ft to 6,400 sq ft.  
 
The development drive within Leicester has continued, with the Waterside Regeneration entering its 
10th year, which has included 1,000 new homes and the construction of over 90,000 sq ft of office 
space accommodation. This council-led project has attracted more than £300 million of new 
investment to Leicester. This investment has included the construction of 900 apartments, 
accommodation for c. 1,000 students, a new school with a capacity for 1,200 pupils and two new 
hotels.  
 
Leicester Market redevelopment started at the end of last year, with the aim to modernise the 700-
year-old marketplace. The council has also proposed the demolition of buildings to the north of 
Green Dragon Square, with the aim to improve the connection of the Market and to Cank Street and 
St Martin’s Square. 
 
Office take-up in Leicester moved back above the 10-year average in late 23/24, with total activity of 
366,740 sq ft. Sales and lettings were primarily focused on second hand space, with two-thirds of 
activity out of town.  
 
The largest letting was at Granite House on Watermead Business Park, Thurmaston, where E.ON 
took 24,863 sq ft. The largest transaction in the city centre to an occupier was the freehold purchase 
of Bankfield House on New Walk, by Planet Education Networks of 14,554 sq ft. Supply tightened, 
falling to 805,322 sq ft, with the main focus being on second hand space, which now accounts for 
93% of stock on the market. Grade A supply overall stands at 90,840 sq ft and is primarily focused 
out of town at Carlton Park, Narborough. Supply within the city centre is as low as 16,200 sq ft. 
Rents remained stable at 2022 levels, with prime values at £20.00 per sq ft and secondary rents at 
£14.50 per sq ft. 
 
 
 

98



31 

 
 
 
Industrial take-up remained above the 10-year average for the fourth successive year in FY23/24, 
with total activity of 2.7m sq ft. The ‘Big Box’ market continued to see good levels of activity, with six 
deals totalling 1.25m sq ft. The largest deal was the 493,000 sq ft build to suit deal for Persimmon’s 
timber frame manufacturing subsidiary Spring 4, at Garendon Park in Loughborough. Overall, 
availability moved up significantly to a little over 4.5m sq ft, with the greatest increase being in 
second hand space coming onto the market, and which now stands at a little under 3m sq ft. 
Available Grade A space fell slightly to 1m sq ft, with the largest building on the market at the end of 
the year being the 340,000 sq ft Hinckley 340. However, there are a number of larger buildings 
presently under construction, particularly at Magna Park, Lutterworth, which will hit the market 
during 2024 and increase overall availability by almost 1.6m sq ft. The availability of poorer quality 
Grade C accommodation remained similar to 2022 at 823,000 sq ft. Prime rents edged higher to 
£9.00 per sq ft, growth of 5.9% over the 12 months, whilst secondary rents continue to reflect the 
strength of the market, rising to £7.00 per sq ft. 

99



32 

 
 

Investment activity in Leicestershire edged up to £182m in FY23/24, with the main focus of activity 

continuing towards the industrial sector, which accounted for 47% of the year’s transactions. The 

largest deal was the £29.75m purchase of the 297,300 sq ft Tesco Chilled distribution facility at 

Hinckley by global logistics real estate group Realterm US. The purchase price represents a net initial 

yield of 7.6% and reflects the impending lease expiry. The most significant deal outside of the 

industrial sector was the £25m purchase of Meridian Leisure Park, Leicester by Greenridge 

Investment Management. The park provides 155,100 sq ft of space, with tenants including Vue 

Cinemas, Hollywood Bowl, David Lloyd Health Clubs along with a number of restaurants. The 

purchase price reflected a net initial yield of 8.5%. Overall prime yields continued to drift out over 

the year by 25 to 50 basis points.  

100



33 

 

  

101



34 

Key Highlights: 

Offices:  

Prime headline rents: £20 per sq ft 

Secondary rents £14.50 per sq ft 

Industrial: 

Prime headline rents: £9 per sq ft 

Secondary rents £7 per sq ft 

Investment: 

 

Transactions Completed £182.1m 

The council’s corporate estate continues its optimisation progress in earnest with improved 

resources across the team, completing a root and branch review of all rents. Industrial edged up 

from £5.40 per sq ft to over £6 per sq ft with further gains anticipated with the purchase of the 

Heathers Industrial Estate in FY23/24 and a review of secondary office and industrial at our business 

centre workspaces. Retail dropped slightly to £7.56 per sq ft from £8.42 per sq ft due to availability 

and inducement. Secondary office rents lag the market significantly with optimisation of this sector 

to come in the next 12-18 months as the secondary office market starts to pick up.  

 

Industrial, £6.05 

Retail, £7.56 

Office, £3.99 

Other, £11.25 

Average Sq Ft Rate by Corporate Estate Sector 
2023/24

Industrial Retail Office Other

102



35 

Yield: 

According to Savills (Market in Minutes: UK Commercial March 2024) the national market remains in 
a period of stasis, with a slow start to the year and limited evidence to move yields, but 
opportunities are emerging. ‘Rest of UK offices’ look interesting based upon the yield gap to Central 
London offices. 

The UK average prime gross yield of 6.14% showed no change.  

At present, there are fewer sellers at current pricing; however, going forward, with falling interest 
rates, lower debt rates will bring in more geared capital. The UK investment volume data for the first 
quarter, albeit subject to upward revision, is showing c.£8bn. At this trend rate, for the remainder of 
this year, it would show a 12% increase on the £28.4bn total recorded for FY23/24. 

A driver of increased investment volumes could be regional offices. Despite historically sitting in line 
with retail and industrial yields, long term, the current office prime yield is higher than both sectors 
for all the reasons that have impacted on the office sector since the pandemic. Additionally, the 
current yield gap between London and the rest of the UK is 2.6 percentage points, the highest for 
over 32 years. 

As UK office occupancy rates continue to climb, albeit slowly, the question is whether the office 
sector outside of Central London is showing the most interesting opportunity. A driver would also be 
an acceleration of a return to the office. The higher productivity discussion of homeworking versus 
office work, which has been ongoing since the pandemic, is turning towards performance, i.e. not 
just what is being done, but how well. Employees may say their best performance is at home; the C-
suite is not so sure. 

Yields continued to present a very mixed story across the board. Outward pressure can be seen in 
four sectors of High Street Retail (7%), Prime market shopping centres (8.25%), Offices (7%) and 
Industrial (5.25%). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Corporate Estate returned an average gross yield of 7.66% for the 

year ended March 2024, which is considered ‘very good’ in commercial 

real estate market terms, and significantly above the average UK prime 

rates of the CCLA property funds. 

 

This compares with the CCLA Local Authority Property Fund (used as a benchmark) which 

returned a gross yield of 4.84% in FY23/24. 

103



36 

The Chart below, illustrates the average gross yield by sector for the three main sectors in the last 

financial year, with the Retail sector returning the highest average yield at 7.59%, and the Industrial 

sector close behind at 6.21% — both above the performance achieved in FY22/23.  

 

Net yield is down predominately due to the upwards pressure in increased utility costs driven largely 

from increases in electricity and gas due to the Russo/Ukraine War. This is expected to continue into 

FY2024/25, with some small reduction in the summer months which increased again in the final two 

quarters from 1 October 2024. Continued increases in the cost of construction and the scarcity of 

certain supplies, continue to impact repair and maintenance costs.  

 

The strategic decision to reduce the council’s operational office estate has also had an impact on the 

corporate estate as some sites are waiting to be leased or on hold due to a difficult seller and 

borrower market.  

 

It is important to understand that, in calculating yields, the capital valuation of a portfolio is a 

significant factor. In line with what has been happening in the rest of the UK, local land values have 

generally appreciated although, as previously stated, in the case of The Corporate Estate portfolio, 

such appreciation generally relates to development value rather than existing use of the land. 

Instances where land and property valuations have decreased minimally, such as the neighbourhood 

shops, means that yield is affected positively. When we look at the yield performance of some of the 

sub-sectors, we can see a clearer picture in terms of performance, with a number of sub-sectors 

generating excellent gross yields above 8% with ground leases in the office sector taking the top spot 

versus the rack rent office yields and rents being at an all-time low and down considerably on last year 

at 5.81% mainly due to availability as noted above. City centre retail gross yields remain excellent at 

11% but down 5.59% on last year due predominantly to a competitive retail space market and 

inducement. 

 

CHART 9 – AVERAGE GROSS YIELD 

  

3.32%

8.13%

12.16%

5.81%

4.45%

11.00%

8.09%

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

8.00%

10.00%

12.00%

14.00%

Ground Lease  

Industrial

Rack Rent   Industrial Ground Lease   O ce Rack Rent   O ce Ground Lease   Retail City Centre   Retail Neighbourhood Shops

Industrial O ce Retail

Average Gross  ield by Sub Type

Retail
7.59%

O ce
4.87%

Industrial
6.21%

Average Gross  ield by Sector

104



37 

Yield in Detail: 

 

Gross yield is generally used to compare the financial performance of property investments and as 

noted above, they are influenced by the quality of the assets (e.g. location, sector, condition, supply 

and demand) and the associated investment risk. With a balanced portfolio, the corporate estate 

therefore incorporates some ‘gold thread income returns’ for very low risk investments over longer 

term investment periods.  

 

Ground leases are generally held in the portfolio as steady, long-term leases that have a strategic role 

in minimising the revenue risk of the corporate estate as a whole. Whilst ground leases in the three 

main sectors are generally lower than average performers, the impact of planned rent increases in 

recent years — particularly in the office sector — means that yield performance has increased 

significantly with Ground lease office sector increasing from 8.32% to 12.16%. 

 

CHART 10 – GROSS YIELD GROUND LEASES 

 
 

Ground lease industrial = 3.32% 

Ground lease office = 12.16% 

Ground lease retail = 4.45% 

 

The average net yield of 3.86% achieved in FY23/24 by The Corporate Estate is on a par in 

performance in comparison to CCLA Local Authorities Property Fund (2023/24) at 1.11% net yield 

used as a benchmark) with the council achieving yields — subject to sector — ranging from 3.32% to 

12.16% respectively.  

 

 

 

 

 

It should be noted that a lower yield is not necessarily due to poor performance (and is not always 

of concern), as low yields are generally related to the low risk involved with the investment. 

Examples in the corporate estate include our ground leases — that provide a long-term income — 

as well as the neighbourhood shops that we hold for purposes that are secondary to income 

generation. 

105



38 

 

 CHART 11 — YIELD CONTRIBUTION BY SECTOR SUB-TYPE 

 
 

 

Chart 11 (above) provides a breakdown of yields across a range of sub-sectors within the Retail, 

Industrial and Office sectors. The Rack Rented Industrial sector has consistently performed very well 

for some years, and continues to do so, with an upwards shift of 0.2% for the year ended March 

2024 to 8.13% (demonstrating and excellent average gross market yield).  

 

Despite the continued general economic turbulence in FY23/24, the best performing sector in terms 

of yield for the third year in a row was the city centre retail sector at a staggering 11%. Both city 

centre retail and the neighbourhood shops have achieved an excellent yield of over 8.09% this year, 

and the Haymarket Shopping Centre shows its good solid performance from its full-year results. 

Office ground leases increased significantly to 12.16% from 8.32% due to a combination of capital 

asset valuations and long lease reviews in-year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Neighbourhood Shops
8.09%

Ground Lease   Retail
4.45%

Ground Lease   O ce
12.16%

Rack Rent   Industrial
8.13%

Rack Rent   O ce
5.81%

Ground Lease   
Industrial
3.32%

City Centre   Retail
11.00%

 ield Contribu on by Sector Sub Type

106



39 

 

Portfolio Sector Yield Indicator Performance Review 

Industrial: 
- Ground Lease 

Industrial 
 
 
 
- Rack Rent Industrial 

 
3.32% 
 
 
 
 
8.13% 

 
Lowest Yield/ 
Low Risk/ 
Stable 
 
 
Very Good 
Yield 

 
Slight increase from 2022/23. Our industrial ground leases are generally 
long-length leases that are low risk in terms in terms of demand and 
rent volatility and offer us stability and longer-term sustainability – 
hence the lower-than-average yield. 
 
A well- performing sector with long-term tenants that continue to have 
confidence in the Council as their landlord. up from 2022/23 levels, 
with opportunity to increase further as rents continue to be aligned to 
market rates. 

Office: 
- Rack Rent Office 
 
 
 
- Ground Lease Office 

 
5.81% 
 
 
 
12.16% 

 
Good Yield/ 
Some Risk 
 
 
Excellent  
High Yield / 
Low Risk   

 
Down from 2022/23 levels due to increased availability. There 
continues to be some risk in this sector in the future as working 
practices and hybrid working changes. 
 
Increased from last year, these low-risk ground leases provide a stable 
and sustainable revenue income. 

Retail: 
- City Centre Retail 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
- Ground Lease Retail 

 
 
 

- Neighbourhood 
Retail 

 

 

 
11.00% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.45% 
 
 
 
8.09% 

 
Excellent 
High Yield/ 
Turbulent  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Good Yield/ 
Low Risk/ 
Stable 
 
Very Good 
Yield/Held for 
Community 
Benefit 

 
City Centre retail space that brings in an excellent yield. Yield 
performance is high due to the historic nature of the holdings and 
subsequent high values, although an increased capital valuation in 2023 
– due to rising land values and growth in sector holdings - has resulted 
in a reduction in yield despite 2023/24 seeing increased revenue 
returns from rent. 
 
A full year of solid income and improved capital asset value from the 
Haymarket Shopping Centre continues to prove a good investment.  
 
A slight decrease, however, a good solid yield. Longer-length leases 
with a lower risk that the City Centre retail space. A stable performer 
with low risk attached. 
 
A slight decrease in yield compared to 2022/23 as availability has 
increased due predominantly to capital requirements. Based in 
community settings on our local authority housing estates, and 
generally tied to our housing portfolio by way of flats above the shops, 
this sector is held to provide communities with local, convenient, 
neighbourhood shopping facilities, which are now undergoing 
improvements to shop fronts to bring locality improvements. 

 
  

107



40 

 

 
 

The Haymarket Shopping Centre 

 

In the third year of ownership, our short-term goals of continuing to stabilise the performance of the 

asset, build a single, strong management team and improving the asset’s performance in terms of 

availability remain our key focus. We have also been proactive in securing long-term sustainable 

income streams with quality occupiers, most notably agreeing a 15-year extension to the lease with 

Tesco and with Addict Dance Academy moving to the Haymarket Theatre to bring a vibrant start to 

FY23/24. Improved occupancy rates have the potential to improve income further as secondary 

retail offers good value for money in the market. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

108



41 

6. CLIMATE EMERGENCY 

 

The council has developed our next Climate Ready Leicester plan which has a key focus on the 

decarbonisation of our buildings, which contribute over 60% of our carbon emissions. This work will 

be delivered through three key strands: energy demand reduction, efficiency improvements and 

heat decarbonisation.   

Our Clean and Green programme has just launched as a new initiative that will pave the way for 

identifying actions that will deliver cost and energy savings. Starting with energy saving initiatives 

such as LED lighting and Solar PV, and also exploring new technologies and partnerships to enhance 

our buildings and ultimately reduce our energy consumption. We are also continuously seeking out 

further funding for decarbonisation work through regional and national funding programmes.  

There are three key actions in our Climate Ready Leicester plan that are currently being delivered 

through the Corporate Estate: 

• Compliance with the MEES legislation - Commercial Buildings (Minimum Energy Efficiency 
Standards)  

o Ensure that council commercial properties meet the Minimum Energy Efficiency 
Standards: 

▪ Currently an Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) rating of 'E' or above 
▪ Expected to rise to C or above by April 2027 and B or above by April 2030. 

• Energy saving in void buildings and spaces 
o Review and improve the way we manage energy to minimise wastage in void 

buildings, end of lifecycle buildings and parts of buildings awaiting redevelopment. 

• Ian Marlow Centre redevelopment 
o Redevelopment of the former Ian Marlow Centre for employment use focusing on 

fabric performance and sustainable energy generation throughout the specification. 

This year has seen work begun on the Ian Marlow centre redevelopment with the creation of new 

business units which will have PV panels and a range of energy efficient characteristics as well as EV 

charging points. Tenants of these buildings will be signing up to our future new green lease scheme. 

The Corporate Estate will continue to seek funding opportunities to develop and enhance the energy 

efficiency of the buildings in our drive towards net zero.  

 

Anna Dodd - Energy and Sustainability Manager 

Joanne Allen - Head of Sustainability 

 

 

 

 

  

109



42 

Statement of Assistant City Mayor Environment and Transport 

The role of the Corporate Estate in delivering the council’s net zero aspirations has two 

opportunities.  

 

Firstly, there is the opportunity and obligation to provide potential tenants with energy efficient 

buildings, as required under the MEES legislation which came into force in 2023/24.  

Secondly, by delivering suitable wellbeing, sustainability, and new technologies through improved 

workplaces we can demonstrate leadership in educating and supporting our tenants to act on their 

impact on their environment, contributing to theirs and our own environmental, social and 

corporate governance (ESG) responsibilities. 

 

I am pleased to see us tackling the carbon emissions from our buildings, as there is no route to net 

zero without substantial change in the built environment.   

 

I am particularly excited to see the redevelopment of the Ian Marlow Centre and the creation of our 

first new green leases at our industrial business units as a demonstration of a leading sustainable 

approach of practical delivery and influencing behavioural change.  

 

Councillor Geoff Whittle  

Assistant City Mayor for Environment and Transport 

 

  

110



43 

7. FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 

Corporate Estate Out-turn for the Year Ending 31 March 2024: 
 
 

 
Number of units – 1263 
 
Valuation as at 31/03/24 - £147.2m 
 

The Corporate Estate net return to the Council for the financial year ending 31st March 2024 was  

£5.68 million. Income generated from these assets is included in the Council’s revenue budget.   

It was previously highlighted that guidance from MHCLG (Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local 

Government) and CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy) warns against 

investment activity which is disproportionately large in relation to an authority’s finances.  

 

With land and property investment income from The Corporate Estate accounting for 1.57% of the 

Council’s net revenue budget in 2023/2024, it continues to represent a manageable risk in relation to 

the overall revenue budget. 

 

Stuart McAvoy 

Head of Finance 

 

In accordance with the Council’s Capital Strategy approved in February 2024 and to be updated in 

February 2025, the Council will not make commercial investments primarily to generate income. 

Each investment will benefit the Council’s service objectives. 

Acquisition of commercial or industrial property can be considered where there are either economic 

development or service reasons why the city would benefit from the Council’s ownership.  An example 

of economic development reasons might be to facilitate a significant business relocation to the city or 

surrounding area. 

Construction or development of commercial or industrial property can be considered for 

regeneration purposes within Leicester, Leicestershire, and Rutland area where the asset 

constructed or developed would generate a continuing income stream and have a readily realisable 

capital value. 

Low Carbon Energy Investments which help to reduce climate change can be considered.  Any such 

investment will still be expected to make a positive return, though in making the investment the 

Council will consider the environmental and social benefits as well as the financial return. 

Whilst investment in existing corporate estate properties can be considered, government rules no 

longer allow investment in new corporate estate properties primarily to produce income even when 

this is funded from the sale of existing properties; there has to be a main service objective for the 

acquisition of new properties. 
 

Nick Booth 

Treasury Manager  

111



44 

8. MANAGING RISK 

 

In managing its portfolio of commercial land and property, Leicester City Council has the following 

risk management arrangements in place: 

 • An Investment Strategy considered by council, that limits the exposure of the council’s in terms of 

property investment.  

• A varied and balanced land and property portfolio that spreads risk across a number of sectors and 

investment types. 

• A strategy that prioritises security over yield and provides a commitment to support the local 

economy by providing accommodation for local businesses.  

• Contributing 1.57% of the council’s 2023/24 net revenue budget, income from the council’s 

portfolio of land and property represents a manageable risk in relation to the overall budget. 

• Robust governance and transparency around proposed commercial acquisitions and disposals and 

the performance of The Corporate Estate, ensuring that appropriate due diligence is undertaken in 

making estate management and investment recommendations.  

• A diverse directly employed team with a range of commercial and estate management expertise 

ensuring the authority has the skills and capacity to make investment recommendations with due 

regard to risk, and to manage the investments over the long-term. 

• In order to maintain capital asset valuation, capital investment will continually be required in order 

to shoulder the increase in maintenance costs to maintain the quality of the estate and meet ESG 

and MEES targets over the short- to medium term.  

The council’s corporate estate portfolio has remained stable in recent years in terms of its asset 

numbers, its make-up in terms of sector classification, its overall capital value, and its income.  

With recent uncertainty in the market, our strategy to optimise the performance of our existing 

estate and to take our time in considering our investment and growth options has proved to be a 

sensible one, with a further strategic acquisition of the Heathers Industrial Estate in Q4 2023/24 

likely to have a further positive impact on a very solid portfolio performance despite a difficult year 

economically.   

112



45 

9. FUTURE OUTLOOK AND STRATEGY FOR 2024/2025  

 

This outlook utilises the most recent and relevant data available at the time of publication of this 

report (October 2024).  

The RICS UK Commercial Property Monitor Q4 2023/24 states that the polarisation in market 

between prime and secondary property is expected to continue to grow. Leicester City Council’s 

Corporate Estate is predominantly secondary in nature, with economic regeneration projects making 

up for the majority of new ‘prime’ accommodation investment. The RICS continues to emphasise 

that: 

• Headline tenant demand and investment enquiries metrics remain flat. 

• The London office market continues to see stronger activity relative to the rest of the UK. 

• The overall UK commercial market is still widely seen as either at the bottom of the 

economic cycle or in the early stages of an upturn. 

In the East Midlands, there still appears to be a general lack of confidence within the market. 

Investment continues to be challenging due to the economy in general. Those who are investing are 

looking for exceptional capital asset asking price reductions against market value – challenging 

disposal values. The Bank of England base rate was cut for the first time since 2020, bringing relief to 

many households and businesses struggling with higher costs and loan repayments. Interest rate 

reductions in August 2024 is seen economically as a positive to entice borrowing and calm the 

markets. However, the rate cut from 5.25% to 5% split the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) voting 

4-for and 4-against. Andrew Bailey made the casting deciding vote which passed the reduction. 

Generally, the capital values market is at best ‘luke-warm’ with under market value transactions 

indicating that those seeking land and property for their own investment purposes are striking hard 

deals. Many sellers are not transacting, and sales asset volumes are down. There is definitely an air 

of caution over acquisitions and disposals which will hopefully dissipate over the coming months. 

Long over-due reforms in UK planning systems are welcomed by the market against a challenging 

and inadequate construction workforce in terms of delivering economic growth. So, overall, a 

relatively flat headline picture for the market.  

In keeping with the steady tone to the latest data, the headline occupier demand series posted a net 

balance of +4%, identical to the reading seen last quarter. Given this value remains very close to 

zero, it suggests tenant demand trends were more or less stable. At the sector level, the office and 

industrial categories posted net balances of +7% and +10%, pointing to a marginal pick-up in 

occupier demand in both cases. Conversely, the net balance of -5% registered for the retail sector, 

although slightly less negative than the -10% reading seen previously, continues to point to subdued 

momentum behind tenant demand. 

Alongside this, space available for occupancy rose modestly across the office and retail sectors, 

albeit the pace of increase softened slightly compared to last time (in net balance terms). 

Interestingly, vacant space reportedly edged up slightly within the industrial segment, evidenced by 

a net balance reading of +9% being registered in Q2 FY24/25. This marks a departure from the 

almost uninterrupted decline in the availability of industrial space over the past decade.  

113



46 

Looking ahead over the coming twelve months, rental growth projections continue to point to a 

mixed performance across different asset classes. Still leading the way, prime industrial rents are 

seen rising over the next year by a net balance of +59% of contributors. At the same time, secondary 

industrial rents are also expected to move higher, albeit the net balance of +22% is noticeably more 

moderate than that for prime. Meanwhile, the prime/secondary split remains even more 

pronounced for offices, with the twelve-month rental expectations series posting a net balance of 

+45% across the former and a still firmly negative -32% for the latter. Looking at the prime retail 

sector, a net balance of +10% of respondents now foresees rents increasing over the year ahead. 

Although the latest figure is relatively modest, it does represent the most positive reading for this 

metric since 2017. Nevertheless, secondary retail rents continue to exhibit a negative outlook, 

posting a net balance of -32%.  

At the regional level, the outperformance of the prime office market in London continues to come 

through in the latest expectations data. Indeed, a net balance of +68% of respondents covering 

London foresee prime office rents rising over the year ahead. This stands significantly above net 

balance readings of +29%, +25% and +29% for the South, Midlands and the North respectively.  

Looking at the investment market, the all-sector net balance for investment enquiries came in at -4% 

in Q2 FY24/25, completely unchanged from Q1 FY24/25. As such, this measure is signalling a 

stagnant trend in investor demand of late. At the sector level, industrial properties did attract 

another small rise in buyer interest (net balance +10%), while slightly negative net balance readings 

were returned across the office (-9%) and retail (-18%) sectors.  

Over the next twelve months, a net balance of +57% of survey participants foresees capital values 

rising across the prime industrial sector, with the figure standing at +19% for secondary. In both 

cases, these forward-looking readings are marginally stronger than last quarter. Across the prime 

office sector, a net balance of +38% of respondents expects capital values to move higher, up from a 

reading of +25% in Q1 FY24/25. By way of contrast, a net balance reading of -33% in Q2 FY24/25 

shows that secondary office values are still seen coming under downward pressure over the next 

twelve months, even if this is slightly less negative than the reading of -41% seen in Q1 FY24/25. For 

prime retail properties, a net balance of +12% of contributors anticipates an upward trend in capital 

values, up from a reading of +5% beforehand. Again, secondary retail is still seen struggling, with 

capital values expected to fall according to a net balance of -29% of respondents.  

Away from the traditional sectors, both capital value and rental growth projections remain firmly 

positive for several alternative commercial real estate asset classes. In particular, student housing, 

data centres, life sciences and multi-family residential all exhibit solid expectations for the year 

ahead. At the other end of the spectrum, the outlook is much flatter for the leisure sector, although 

this does mark an improvement compared to the marginally negative assessment respondents put 

forward last quarter (Q2 FY24/25). 

114



47 

 

 

 

  

115



48 

 

 

 

  

116



49 

 

 

 

  

117



50 

Other important metrics include: 

• Annual CPI inflation increased slightly to 2.2% in July 2024, up from the recent lows of 2.0% 
recorded in May and June, as last year’s declines in energy prices fall out of the annual 
comparison. Therefore, we have now probably passed the bottom of the current cycle. 
Whilst a further uptick in inflation is likely this year, this should only be modest. The 
consensus forecast is for CPI to reach 2.5% by Q4 of FY24/25, whilst the Bank of England 
now expects around 2.75% in the second half of this year. 
 

• Economic growth has bounced back strongly from the very mild technical recession in the 
second half of FY23/24. Q1 FY24/25 saw growth of +0.7%, its highest rate since Q2 2021 (at 
the tail end of the post-pandemic recovery period), followed by +0.6% in Q2 FY24/25. 
 

• Growth is likely to slow somewhat in the second half of 2024/25. However, with the path of 
interest rates now downwards (albeit gradually), much improved consumer confidence, and 
strong levels of business confidence being reported in recent PMI surveys, the outlook is for 
further robust rises in output. The latest (August) consensus expects +0.4% in Q3 and +0.3% 
in Q4 of FY24/25. Overall, FY24/25 is forecast to see annual GDP growth of 1.1%, rising a 
little to 1.3% in the first quarter of 2025. 
 

• The Labour government’s large overall majority should provide a welcome period of relative 
domestic political stability. Encouragingly, its manifesto acknowledged the importance of 
economic growth and contains several positive initiatives, including developing an industrial 
strategy, and policies to accelerate the upgrading of key infrastructure and to raise the rate 
of housebuilding. However, delivery will be extremely challenging, and the government is 
clearly signalling that a further rise in taxation will be announced in the forthcoming Budget 
on 30th October 2024. This will need to be carefully targeted if it is to avoid adversely 
impacting confidence and growth. 

Retail occupier market: 

• Retail sales have been highly volatile this year, impacted by factors such as the unpredictable 
weather and the general election. Sales volumes rose 0.5% during July, a significant 
improvement on the (upwardly revised) -0.9% during June. Department store sales surged 
by 4.0% month-on-month, and other non-food stores rose by 2.5%. The overall trend in sales 
volumes is one of gradual improvement. Taking the three months to July 2024, volumes rose 
by 1.1%, the second-strongest rate in almost three years. 

• GfK’s Consumer Confidence series was unchanged in August 2024 at -13, but nonetheless 
remains at its highest level in almost three years. The index for personal finances improved, 
likely helped by August 2024’s base rate reduction, although consumers remain downbeat 
about the broader economy. 

• Households are benefiting from this year’s reductions in National Insurance Contributions, 
and many lower income households are also benefiting from April 2024’s uplift in the 
National Living Wage of nearly 10% (though this is adversely impacting costs for many 
businesses, most notably the retail and food & beverage sectors). In addition, wage growth 
continues to be well above inflation, and the energy price cap continues to fall. This is all 
positive for household disposable income. However, tax increases are likely to be announced 
in the October’s 2024 Budget, although it remains to be seen where the burden will fall. 

118



51 

• The Q2 2024 RICS UK Commercial Property Survey shows a net balance of -5% for retail 
occupier demand, a noticeable improvement on -10% in Q1 2024, -18% in Q4 2023, and -
25% in Q3 2023. Respondents continued to cite an increase in overall vacant space. 

• Average retail rental values have shown very modest growth since 2022, according to MSCI. 
The Monthly Index reports that average retail rental value growth in the 12 months to July 
2024 was 0.9%, and has been within a range of 0.5% to 0.9% on this measure since October 
2023. However, average retail rental values remain 16.5% below their previous peak in 2018. 

• The all-retail trend masks significant variation, depending on the type of property and 
location. Average rents for standard (high street) shops fell almost continuously from May 
2018 to May 2023, by circa -29%. However, growth has returned over the last year. Annual 
growth accelerated to 1.9% by May 2024, although it slowed to 1.0% over the year to August 
2024 (MSCI Monthly Index). Growth is being driven by the London market. 

• Average rental values in the retail warehouse subsector are continuing to rise, by 1.4% in the 
12 months to July 2024, unchanged from June 2024 and slightly above the previous peak in 
annual growth seen in January 2023 (MSCI Monthly Index). On a quarterly basis, growth 
increased a little to 0.5% in the three months to July 2024, a little above the equivalent 
annual rate. 

• Average shopping centre rental values have also returned to growth in recent months, rising 
by +1.0% in the three months to July 2024. This has not yet fed through to the annual 
figures, although July’s decrease of -0.5% was a significant improvement on the fall of -1.3% 
recorded in June 2024, and the slowest rate of decline since May 2023. 

Office occupier market: 

• The longer-term impacts of the working-from-home revolution mean that many businesses 
have been assessing their real estate footprint, although the level of downsizing is highly 
business-specific and has now declined noticeably. Indeed, occupancy rates have broadly 
levelled off, and the three-day office week has emerged as the new normal. 

• Although corporate real estate is the second-highest cost after salaries for many businesses, 
the provision of high-quality space remains important to assist with recruitment, retention, 
and productivity strategies, as well as to enhance staff health & wellbeing. This is reflected in 
continued robust demand for high-quality space. 

• There is also a much greater focus on buildings that are sustainable and energy-efficient, as 
occupiers try to meet increasingly ambitious ESG aspirations. This is being accelerated by the 
changes to MEES regulations which came into force in April 2023, with the next round of 
tightening due in 2027. 

• We are seeing continued strong demand for serviced and co-working provision from 
established businesses that wish to lease short-term space, pending a move to longer-term 
conventional office space once the economic outlook becomes more certain. 

• The Q2 2024 RICS UK Commercial Property Survey continues to show a positive net balance 
for office occupier demand at +7%, up slightly from +6% in Q1 2024, and a considerable 
upturn on the negative balances reported throughout FY23/24. This upturn in sentiment has 
been largely due to a marked improvement in central London, and in prime office markets 
more generally. 

119



52 

• Prime rental levels have proved highly resilient, reflecting the focus of occupier demand 
towards top-quality space of which there is little available stock. Recent development 
schemes have set new benchmarks in several central London districts and regional city 
centre markets. The gap with rents for poorer quality grade B stock is likely to widen further. 

• Average annual rental value growth for all UK offices was 2.2% as at July 2024, compared 
with a recent peak of 2.8% in March 2024, but well ahead of the post-pandemic low of 0.8% 
recorded in January 2023 (MSCI Monthly Index). 

• There is an increasing geographical divergence in rental performance. Central London is 
pulling ahead of the south-east and regional markets, boosted by strong performance in the 
West End, with healthy demand for grade A stock amid a very low supply of prime space. 

• Average annual rental growth in the West End/Midtown submarket reached 6.7% in July 
2024 on the MSCI Monthly index, up from 6.1% in June 2024, and the highest rate since 
August 2016. In contrast, the City of London saw annual growth of 1.6% in the year to July 
2024, down from a recent peak of 2.3% in May 2024. The rest of the south-east recorded 
average annual rental growth of 0.9% in July 2024, continuing a deceleration from 2.0% in 
January 2024. Average rental growth in the regional markets was 1.3% in July 2024, down 
from 1.4% in June 2024 and a peak of 2.4% in January 2024 (MSCI Monthly Index). 

Industrial occupier market: 

• Industrial and logistics take-up has reduced following the exceptionally strong demand 
experienced during 2020-2022, driven by pandemic-specific requirements as well as 
accelerated change in global supply chains. Longer-term structural change continues to 
generate occupier demand, most notably the influence of e-commerce, with ‘last mile’ units 
for urban delivery being a key area. 

• Occupier demand for larger distribution units has been somewhat subdued in recent 
quarters, amid political uncertainty and elevated interest rates. However, occupiers may 
now be looking ahead to lower interest rates, more sustained economic growth and an 
increase in consumer optimism. The Q2 2024/25 RICS UK Commercial Property Survey 
showed a net balance for industrial occupier demand of +10%, compared with a recent low 
of +3% in Q3 2023, although still well below the peak of +49% in Q2 2022. 

• Vacancy rates have been rising over recent quarters, due to a combination of slowing 
demand and rising supply. However, the supply of high quality, energy efficient new units is 
very limited across many key markets, which is where demand is focused, particularly as 
many logistics operators are promoting their ability to maximise their clients’ sustainability 
credentials within the supply chain. Whilst new schemes are coming forward, the overall 
development pipeline remains restricted, and so the relative shortage of large high-quality 
units will continue. 

• Competition amongst occupiers for existing and new build product has helped maintain 
upward pressure on rental values despite the overall lower demand levels. Average annual 
industrial rental value growth peaked in August 2022 at 13.2% and has since decelerated 
from this very high rate but remains strong at 6.3% in July 2024 (unchanged from the May 
and June 2024 figures), still well above general inflation. Average industrial rental values 
increased by 1.3% during the three months to July 2024, the equivalent of 5.4% on an annual 
basis (MSCI Monthly Index). 

120



53 

• The Q2 2024 RICS UK Commercial Property Survey reported a net balance of +59% expecting 
prime rents to rise over the next 12 months, almost unchanged from the Q1 2024 reading.  
A net balance of +22% expected secondary rents to increase (unchanged from Q1 202). 

The performance of our portfolio, despite the economic and market turbulence, shows that the 

outlook for our corporate estate remains solid, although the anticipated growth in hybrid working 

undoubtedly affected the demand for office space and we will need to maintain high quality space 

that meets the MEES legislative changes to ensure that occupancy levels and yields remain high. In 

addition, we should consider the opportunities to continue to develop our space to attract and meet 

the growing demand for flexible, local, shared office space solutions — presenting an opportunity to 

enhance and strengthen our local Managed Workspace offer.  

According to Steven Lang, Director of Office and Life Sciences at Savills UK (Market in Minutes: UK 

Commercial — March 2024) “The market remains in a period of stasis, but opportunities are 

emerging, ‘Rest of UK offices’ look interesting based upon the yield gap to Central London offices”.  

The strength of our existing Industrial portfolio, along with our ability to maintain almost 100% 

occupancy, tells us that our investment activity should continue to be focussed on this sector. Supply 

of available industrial space is shrinking, particularly in car servicing and whilst demand is high, and 

optimising and investing in our stock will support a growth in rental and capital values in the coming 

years, in a sector that currently presents low risk. Whilst supporting our city centre and 

neighbourhood shopkeepers in a changing market is key in terms of offering more flexible lease 

structures, we can continue to maintain strong asset values and improve the vibrancy of our city 

centre and neighbourhood shopping spaces by investing and increasing the service life — and the 

energy efficiency — of our stock. This includes both our indoor and outdoor space use, potentially 

transforming and/or repositioning some of our assets to mixed use in order to optimise benefits and 

to maintain an attractive retail proposition in the future.  

With the Haymarket Shopping Centre under our belt, we continue to assess the potential for more 

beneficial use of the land in our existing portfolio, whilst maintaining the necessary balance across a 

broad range of sectors to minimise risk.   

121



54 

Short Term Strategic Focus — Consolidation, Optimisation and Targeted Investment  

In our last report we set out our Strategy and the areas of activity that we are focusing on in our 

management of the council’s corporate estate portfolio. With a short-term focus on Consolidation, 

Optimisation and Targeted Investment, and a medium to long-term focus on Sustainable Growth, we 

are pleased to report significant progress in relation to the following key strategic activities: 

1. Income and Yield Enhancement by Making the Most of our Current Portfolio:  

 

• Ensure that all tenants are paying appropriate market rents  

We are reviewing our leases, modernising lease covenants as appropriate, and ensuring that our 

rents are competitive and in line with market rents. We expect to generate revenue growth of 

more than 10% from this activity. We are developing a transparent decision-making framework 

in relation to requests for below market value (BMV) commercial rentals. In addition, we are 

introducing improved policy provisions for rent review periods, conversion to geared leases, 

break clauses and lease length to support future revenue growth and risk management.  

 

• Provide more transparent service charge information to tenants and improve the service 

charge collection process  

We have improved the quality of our service charge schedules and are ensuring that Annual 

Service Charge Schedules are to RICS Standards with enhanced direct debit collection processes.  

 

• Re-purpose appropriate surplus operational assets to continue to offer secondary office/ 

business space  

Phoenix House and Sovereign House  — have improved occupancy in the second quarter of 

FY24/25 – showing that there is a slight upturn in demand for secondary office space in the 

corporate estate portfolio. This is constantly being balanced against the need to raise capital to 

support our revenue position wherever possible.  

 

• Maintain high occupancy and minimal void periods through improved property marketing 

including introducing an on-line, interactive property shop  

We are developing our specification that will enhance digitalisation of our workflows and 

channel shift our enquiry management processes to improve the customer experience.  

 

2. Risk Management:  

 

• Review our Retail Strategy to challenge our objectives and determine the level of our future 

presence  

We have adopted a Retail Strategy that recognises our commitment to maintain a city centre 

retail presence, supporting the retail recovery through flexible leases and incentives, along with 

additional planned investment and strategic acquisitions such as the Haymarket Shopping 

Centre; and that continues to acknowledge the importance of our locally based shops in serving 

the communities. We are continuing to invest in condition surveys and improvements in the 

Neighbourhood Retail sector and through shop front and locality improvements. 

 

 

 

122



55 

• Capitalise on opportunities to decarbonise our estate in line with MEES legislation  

The commercial real estate sector can play can an important role in realising UK net zero 
ambitions if government strategy and sector collaboration is targeted at decarbonising building 
stock, mitigating them against changing climate and meeting sustainable investment demand. 
 
Having delivered the £24 million funding programme to decarbonise our operational buildings 
we continue to seek and apply for every funding opportunity to decarbonise our corporate 
estate and improve our energy efficiency. Development of our new low carbon business units at 
the former Ian Marlow Centre demonstrates our commitment to driving forward to reach our 
net zero ambitions. 
 

3. Customer/Occupier/Tenant:  

• Continue to support the local economy by maintaining a balance of commercialism and 

social value in our property offer 

 

In addition to adopting our Retail Strategy, we are developing a strategy for our Managed 

Workspaces and reviewing our holdings in the ‘Other’ sector (such as car parks, garages and 

residential). 

 

 • Manage our tenant debt sensitively (both short-term and aged debt)  

We continue to work with our occupiers on ensuring that we liaise closely with tenants to 

provide and support affordable financial solutions, as appropriate, as well as signposting to 

grant/funding opportunities. We have made significant in-roads reducing our debt levels. On-

going close management and an improved focus on personalised support and relationships with 

our tenants will be our continued focus on customer service improvement. 

 

• Transition of regeneration workspaces to The Corporate Estate (based on an agreed 

regeneration to commercial lifecycle)  

Leicester Business Centre transferred from our Economic Regeneration portfolio to our 

corporate estate portfolio. With the addition of managed workspace assets such as Dock 2, 3 

and 4 and the Gresham Building to the Regeneration portfolio along with Pilot House in 2025.  

As part of our review of our Managed Workspace offer we have invested in new green leases 

and BREEAM excellent new industrial units at Blackbird Road, which will come online in 

2025/26. This demonstrates how we can target investment in modern small business units for 

start-ups and medium-sized grow-on space to support local business growth and in continuing 

to meet changes in business working practices.  

 

We are continuing to focus on Sustainable Growth and our medium to long term objectives 

to:  

 

• Invest in our high-performing and strategically important sites to provide a secure and 

sustainable revenue income.  

 

• Consider disposal of ageing/difficult to let/sub-optimal/end of useful lifecycle estate.  

 

123



56 

• Consider investment opportunities with strategic value in lower-risk growth sectors such as 

industrial, food or retail distribution/warehousing — sale and leaseback opportunities reduce 

risk further.  

 

• Work with OPE partners to enhance inward investment opportunities.  

 

• Invest in evidence-driven local growth (identifying sites for potential construction of new 

units/being responsive to the Local Plan).  

 

• Consider new sector investment opportunities.  

 

  

124



57 

Market Commentary: 

 
This year’s forecasts suggest a stronger outlook and opportunity for UK property investment in 
2024/25 compared to last year, but the political landscape and interest rate story will remain 
prevalent drivers. 
 
2024/25 will be an opportunity to buy at the very bottom of the cycle. 

We believe that the factors that drove the recent collapse in commercial property values and 
confidence will all improve in 2024/25. However, as the storm surge of high inflation and interest 
rates recedes, some new (and old) rocks will be exposed to challenge investors in certain sectors. 

While we do expect that borrowing costs will fall over the next two years, they will not return to the 
levels that we were used to in the pre-Covid decade. This will mean that not only will prime yields 
not return to 2019 levels, but also that stronger than normal levels of rental growth will be needed 
to support some investment and development decisions. 

Parts of the UK commercial property market look set to continue to deliver strong rental growth, but 
even this positivity may not be enough to convince some investors to return to the market when 
other regions of the world are continuing to experience falling values and distress. 

 
Political change seldom impacts the commercial property market. 

The UK is one of 40 countries that had a general election in 2024, and the question always comes 
round as to whether this heightens investor uncertainty. Our analysis suggest that transactional 
activity is generally lower than normal in the three months prior to the election date, and is then 
expected to recover in the following six- to twelve- month period. There is little evidence that a UK 
general election has ever had a measurable impact on commercial property pricing. 

Given the importance of North American investors in the UK market, the fact that they too have an 
election this year is also a consideration around investor confidence. We find little evidence that a 
change of leadership in the US has ever notably affected American real estate investors’ 
international behaviour. 

 
Will 2024/25 be the year that offices stop being a dirty word? 

There is no doubt that some offices and office markets are facing challenges, but we believe that 
2024/25 will be the year when investors stop making sector-wide pronouncements and start to 
focus on the traditional asset-specific basics. A year ago we were predicting that prime office rents 
would grow across the UK, and sure enough, they did (averaging 4.2% per annum growth over the 
post-Covid period). 

Cooling inflation, falling borrowing costs, and good rental growth prospects will bring some 
development schemes back into viability territory in 2024/25. This will lead to a rise in development 
and refurbishment starts. 

Problems will remain, either where tenant demand has moved on or where the landlord has 
underinvested to stave off technical obsolescence. 2024/25 will also see some lenders taking a more 
forceful stance with borrowers, and this will lead to motivated sales at discounted prices. 

125



58 

At the other end of the spectrum, the undersupply of prime and green office space across the UK’s 
major office markets remains a fact, and will continue to be a driver of better-than-average rental 
growth over the short to medium term. Value-add investor demand will deepen in 2024 to capitalise 
on this, though larger projects will remain challenged by institutional caution. 

As is often the case, the first signs of recovery in capital values will come in the markets where 
income-focused equity investors tend to play, and we expect to see prime yields hardening in both 
London City and West End offices by the end of 2024. 

 
Retail looks cheap. 

Some of the pressures on household finances will diminish in 2024/25, but high prices will remain 
the norm in many areas, and higher borrowing costs will impact on housing expenses even after the 
base rate has started to fall. Many retailers will be feeling the benefit of rebased rents and rates, but 
also the pain of higher operational costs in other areas. Some cautious expansion of retail footprints 
is expected in 2024/25, and this will continue the downward trend in vacancy rates that we started 
to see in FY23/24. 

Opportunistic investors will continue to be attracted to parts of the retail market by the high yields 
on offer, as well as the medium-term capital growth upside that could come from change of use. We 
do not expect to see a surge in retail investment volumes in 2024/25, but some prime yield 
hardening in some sectors and locations is baked into our forecasts for both 2024 and 2025. 

 
From sheds and meds to logistics and life sciences. 

Every recent investor survey, including our own pan-European survey from October 2023, has 
suggested that not only are logistics and life sciences at the top of investors’ shopping lists for 
2024/25, but the weighting towards these sectors has risen. Both sectors offer an attractive mix of 
structural change-driven demand, restrained supply, and strong rental growth prospects, so it is easy 
to see why income-focused investors continue to be enthused by them. 

Sheer weight of money targeted at these sectors should not only lead to their prices rising in 2024, 
but also raises the risk of an over-exuberant period of growth thereafter. However, with annual 
rental growth prospects in the high single digits per annum, the rationale for buying while these 
sectors are comparatively cheap remains a good one. 

 
Savills (UK Cross Sector Outlook – Commercial 2024/25)  

 

 

  

126



59 

Investment Overview - Leicestershire  

Investment activity in Leicestershire edged up to £182m in 2023/24, with the main focus of activity 

continuing towards the industrial sector, which accounted for 47% of the year’s transactions. The 

largest deal was the £29.75m purchase of the 297,300 sq ft Tesco Chilled distribution facility at 

Hinckley by global logistics real estate group Realterm US. The purchase price represents a net initial 

yield of 7.6% and reflects the impending lease expiry. The most significant deal outside of the industrial 

sector was the £25m purchase of Meridian Leisure Park, Leicester by Greenridge Investment 

Management. The park provides 155,100 sq ft of space, with tenants including Vue Cinemas, 

Hollywood Bowl, David Lloyd Health Clubs along with a number of restaurants. The purchase price 

reflected a net initial yield of 8.5%. Overall prime yields continued to drift out over the year by 25 – 

50 basis points.  

Innes England (Market Insite Brochure 2024)  

 

It was a challenging 2023 for global commercial real estate (CRE),  with investment volumes falling 
by 46% as investors grappled with elevated interest rates and higher debt costs. Despite a tougher 
environment, private investors remained the most active global buyers for the third consecutive 
year, taking a record 49% share of this global $698 billion market with the living sectors, industrial 
and logistics, and offices their top picks. 
 
High-quality and well-managed commercial real estate is integral to levelling up UK towns and cities 
and contributing to better spaces and amenities for local communities. Every pound spent in the 
sector has the potential to generate an almost equal amount to UK GVA, so this should be 
maximised through a strengthened global inward investment strategy. 
 
The UK commercial real estate sector underpins local jobs and business that can make a significant 
contribution the UK growth. The sector’s contribution is equivalent to 3.3% of total UK gross value 
added (GVA) and generates 2.5% in tax revenues and the employment of 3.5% of the UK workforce 
through direct, indirect and induced activity. 
 

The Wealth Report 2024 – Knight Frank 

 

 
 
  

127



60 

10. CLOSING STATEMENT  

 

The resilience of our investments across the Corporate Estate continues to remain strong despite the 

ongoing economic uncertainty across investment markets this year. At under 2% of the council’s 

overall net revenue budget, our Corporate Estate doesn’t expose us to significant risk around macro 

market fluctuations, but we remain vigilant and are working hard to continuously improve our 

returns as well as the value of the service that we provide to our tenants across the estate. 

The Corporate Estate continues to provide good economic investment, performing above CCLA 

trends, bringing with it a solid year of results in the performance of our portfolio in a challenging 

market. Whilst the economy has been volatile, its impact and pressure on our financial performance 

has been well-contained, with demand and occupation remaining high, and voids remaining low.   

Being mindful of the prevailing fiscal pressures, we will continue to resource around protecting the 

value of our estate as well as improving our customer experience and aligning the council’s revenue 

from rent and service charges in line with the market. And, whilst economic growth is not predicted 

in the next financial year, other social, political, and environmental factors could mean that we must 

adapt. We therefore plan over the next three years to change our strategic decision-making around 

targeted investment and disinvestment of our wider estate, allowing for the private sector to 

support regenerative schemes and economic development of the city and neighbourhoods.  

We continue to actively focus on our net zero ambitions and sustainability remains at the forefront 

of our strategic improvements including a cleaner and greener property portfolio. FY23/24 saw the 

implementation of the Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards (MEES) legislation and we are 

committed to meeting our net zero ambitions for our buildings. We will continue to work with our 

tenants to improve and enhance our estate wherever possible by exploiting central government 

grant funding.  

The breadth of our portfolio, which is wholly invested in the local area, alongside a strategy that is 

underpinned by robust governance and strong risk management, has enabled us to maintain a solid 

revenue returns and capital yield year-on-year. Our future strategy is not governed solely by revenue 

or yield, rather, it is activity-focussed across a range of areas, to optimise returns, maintain good 

quality stock, and improve the covenant quality of tenants, whilst providing a range of 

accommodation to support local businesses, small and large, established and new. 

After a year of stabilisation and resilient performance, our promise remains steadfast in that we will 

continue to proactively manage our portfolio, its suitability and performance, as well as its financial 

returns – including considering the wider financial challenges faced by local government under the 

backdrop of a reduction in central government funding over the last decade. Our strategic focus will 

remain on continuing to achieve greater yields from our investment portfolio or dispose of low 

yielding assets where yield growth is not achievable.  

 

We will continue to integrate our Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) considerations to our 

investment and management activity, ensuring that our portfolio remains both stable and 

sustainable, now, and into the future. 

Richard Sword 

Strategic Director for City Development and Neighbourhoods  

128



61 

References: 

CCLA. The Local Authorities’ Property Fund Annual Report and Financial Statements year ended 31 March 
2024. London. CCLA.  
 

Savills. (2024). UK Cross Sector Outlook 2024: Commercial (2024). Savills. 

Savills. (2024). Commercial Market in Minutes – April 2024. Savills. 

RICS. (2024). UK Commercial Property Market Survey Q1 2024. RICS. 

RICS. (2024). UK Commercial Real Estate Impact Report. March 2024. RICS. 

Innes England. (2024). Market Insite - Report. Innes England. 

CBRE. (2024). UK Real Estate Market Outlook. London: CBRE. 

CBRE. (2024). UK Mid-Year Market Outlook 2024. CBRE. 

Carter Jonas (2024) September 2024 Commercial Market Outlook.  

CCLA Local Authorities Property Fund 2023/24. 

CCLA Local Authorities factsheet (2024).  

 

RICS Modus Property Journal April 2024 - Why UK commercial property can be cautiously optimistic.  

By Tarrant Parsons -Senior Economist at the RICS. 

 

Notes: 

As one of the UK's largest local authority and charity fund managers, the CCLA manages investments for the 

public sector, charities, and religious organisations. Investments include the Local Authorities Property Fund that 

aims to provide investors with a high level of income and long-term capital appreciation.  

 

129





Overview Select Committee 
Work Programme 2024 – 2025 

 

Meeting 
Date Item Recommendations / Actions Progress 

31 July 
2024 

1. Overview of OSC Portfolio 
2. Revenue Outturn 2023/24 
3. Capital Outturn 2023/24 
4. Income Collection April 2023 – 

March 2024 
5. Review of Treasury 

Management Activities 
2023/24 

6. Corporate Equality Strategy  
7. Scrutiny Annual Report 

2023/24 

 
2a. Information to be provided on 
whether Post-16 Home to School 
SEND transport would be offered 
outside the three-mile rule. 
2b. Clarification to be sought on any 
guidance form government on 
voluntary services via the Education 
Support Officer and any 
communication with the government 
on SEND Transport. 
2c. Information to be given on the 
outcomes of APs. 
 
6a. Members to be kept updated on 
progress. 
6b. Any specific examples of issues to 
be included going forward to be sent to 
the relevant officer. 
6c. Other groups to be engaged with in 
order to open wider communication. 
6d. Workforce statistics to be included 
in presentation. 
 

 2a. Response sent to members   

 

 

 

 

 

2c. Response sent to members. 

 

6a. Ongoing 

6b. Ongoing 

6c. Ongoing 

6d. To be presented to members on 3rd 
December. 

131

A
ppendix E



Meeting 
Date Item Recommendations / Actions Progress 

26 
September 
2024 

1. Questions for City Mayor 
2. Revenue Monitoring Period 3 
3. Capital Monitoring Period 3 

1a. Figures on returns from 
Travelodge above Haymarket to be 
provided. 
1b. Consideration be given to  the 
issue of better coordination between 
Highways and Street Cleansing so as 
to ensure that risky drains are regularly 
unblocked, and leaves cleaned to 
avoid flooding. 
1c. Follow up on issue surrounding the 
Leys Building and find out how long the 
development will take to complete. 
1d. Consideration be given to informal 
scrutiny on call centres through the 
C&N Commission. 
1e. To be looked into as to whether 
funding for libraries was reduced and 
whether new books were still being 
purchased. 
 
2a. Report to be provided on the 
pressures in homelessness and the 
progress of the £45m acquisition 
programme. 
2b.To be established as to where 
department are with recommendations 
on SEND transport. 
3a. OSC asked for an update on the 
estate’s shops capital programme and 
if there was any other funding available 
for shops works.    

 
 
 
1b. Written response sent to member 
concerned. 
 
1c. This has been followed up. 
Response sent to member concerned. 
1d. No need for informal scrutiny as this 
will be considered in the Customer 
Services report. 
1e. Response sent to members 
 
 
2a. Report added to workplan – Other 
info sent separately to members. 
2b. Response sent to members 
 
3b. Response sent to members. 

132



Meeting 
Date Item Recommendations / Actions Progress 

3b. S106 Contributions to be 
considered for helping to fund MUGA 
in Beaumont Leys. 
 

133



Meeting 
Date Item Recommendations / Actions Progress 

12 
December 
2024 

1. Questions for City Mayor 
2. Update on Temporary 

Accommodation Pressures & 
£45m Acquisition Programme 

3. Council Tax Support Scheme 
– Update on model consulted 
on. 

4. Revenue Monitoring Period 6 
5. Capital Monitoring Period 6 
6. Income Collection Report – 

Half-Yearly 
7. Treasury Report – Half Yearly 

1a. Youth Reps to invite Cllrs and City 
Mayor to schools and colleges to 
engage with Young People (including 
Castle Mead Academy) 
1b. Statistics on home-educated 
children to be circulated to members of 
the Committee 
2a. Figures of non-vulnerable singles 
to be circulated to members. 
2b. A note on the issues around 
whether housing benefit covers the 
costs of temporary accommodation to 
be produced. 
2c. A request to undertake Councillor 
briefing to aid understanding of the 
issue around homelessness. 
2d. Breakdown to be provided on 
substance abuse and mental health 
services provided. 
2e. Breakdown to be provided on 
asylum seekers in families and 
singles. 
2f. Councillors were advised if they 
had individual cases of people being in 
temporary accommodation for 
extended periods then to send them to 
Chris, so additional information can be 
provided. 
2g. Numbers to be provided on people 
who moved from temporary 
accommodation into private 

1a. Invite will be sent after new Youth 
Council sworn in. 
 
1b. Stats sent to members. 
 
 
2a. Figures circulated to members. 
 
2b. Information sent to members. 
 
 
 
2c. Training session booked. 
 
 
2c. Information sent to members. 
 
 
 
2e. Information sent to members. 
 
2f. Ongoing. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2g. Information sent to members. 
 
2h. Information sent to members. 

134



Meeting 
Date Item Recommendations / Actions Progress 

accommodation due to a lack of 
suitable council housing. 
2h. More information to be provided on 
Greyfield sites. 
2i. Supported living model to be 
considered as an item going forward. 
3a. Paper to be sent to members 
before Full Council detailing the 
scheme.  To include details of 
alternative schemes. 
3b. Further briefings to be offered. 
3c. Members to contact Cllr Russell 
with questions. 
3d. Find out as to whether the Council 
is still paying to light empty buildings. 
3e. Interest rate on loan for Ethically 
Sourced Products Ltd to be 
ascertained and when is the remaining 
principle due for repayment.   

 
2i. A joint report by Social Care & 
Housing is already proposed to be 
submitted to Scrutiny commission on the 
matter of Supported Housing. 
 
 
3a. Complete. 
 
 
 
3b. Complete. 
3c. Ongoing. 
3d. Information sent to members. 
3e. Information sent to members. 

135



Meeting 
Date Item Recommendations / Actions Progress 

30 January 
2025 

 

1. Minutes of Previous 
Meeting 
 

2. Questions for City Mayor 
 
 

3. HRA Budget 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

4. Capital Programme 
 
 
 
 
 

5. General Revenue Budget 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.Update to be provided on whether 
the outside of buildings was still lit. 
 
2. Presentation on Children's homes to 
be shared with the Committee. 
 
3a. Recommendation that an 
amendment be made whereby if 
district heating charges were to be 
increased it would be a decision of Full 
Council.  As per the amendment made 
at Council in Feb 24. 
3b. Issue of maintenance charges to 
come to Housing Scrutiny. 
 
4a. An update to be provided to 
EDTCE scrutiny on the railway project. 
4b. Business case for the KRIII Café 
capital project should be considered at 
Scrutiny before the scheme is started. 
    
5a. Corporate Estate Report to be 
shared with the Commission. 
5b. Detail of the conditions attached to 
the Social Care Prevention Grant to be 
circulated. 
5c. OSC requested that the CM made 
a decision in relation to adventure 
playgrounds as soon as possible. 

1. Information sent to members. 
2. Circulated to members. 

 

 

3a. Recommendation amended for 
Council. 

3b. On forward plan for Housing 
Scrutiny Commission. 

 

 

4a. On forward plan for EDTCE Scrutiny 
Commission. 

4b. On forward Plan for Culture and 
Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Commission. 

5a. To be considered by OSC. 

5b. Information sent to members. 

 

 

 

136



Meeting 
Date Item Recommendations / Actions Progress 

 
 
 

6. Treasury & Investment 
Strategy  

7. Work Programme 
 
 

5d. A working group is to be set up to 
look at the future funding of adventure 
playgrounds. 
 
6. Wording to be added to clarify that 
there are no plans of any property fund 
investments at this time. 
 
7a. A report to be provided on the 
work completed in Revenues and 
Benefits. 
7b. The Committee is given the 
opportunity to consider the 
implications of local government 
reform.   
 

5d. Informal meeting took place on 13th 
February. 

6. Amended. 

 

7a. Added to workplan. 

7b. Added to workplan – date TBC 

19 March 
2025 

1. Minutes of Previous Meeting 
2. Call in – Proposed Purchase 

of 134 Unit City Centre 
Building 

3. Revenue Monitoring Period 9  
4. Capital Monitoring Period 9 
5. Council Tax Support Task 

Group – Scope 
 

 

1. Working Group on Adventure 
Playgrounds requested to continue. 
2. Data on length of stays to be 
proactively shared. 
3. Data to come to a future meeting on 
where vacancies are in the council and 
the levels of vacancies and work 
around recruitment in social work in 
particular. 
4. Information to be provided on the 
work done on St Paul's Church. 
 
 

1. Update sent to members. 

2. Update sent to members. 

3. Provisionally added to workplan. 

4. Update sent to members. 

137



Meeting 
Date Item Recommendations / Actions Progress 

1 May 2025 1. Children’s Homes and 
Planning Issues 

2. Corporate Estate Report  
 

1. PDCC Members and 
representatives from the DfE, 
CQC and Ofsted to be invited. 

2. To look at work competed in 
this area.  As requested at the 
meeting of 30 January 2025. 
 

 

 

Forward Plan Items (suggested) 
 

Topic Detail Proposed Date 

Revenue Outturn 2024/25 To go to first meeting of new municipal year.  

Capital Revenue Outturn 2024/25 To go to first meeting of new municipal year.  

Domestic and Sexual Violence Needs 
Assessment. 
 

To go to first meeting of new municipal year.  

Revenues and Benefits To go to first meeting of new municipal year.  

Customer Services Update  To go to first meeting of new municipal year.  

Income Collection 2024/25 To go to first meeting of new municipal year.  

Treasury Management Annual Report 
2024/25 

To go to first meeting of new municipal year.  

Update on Asset Sales  September 2025 

138



Vacancies and Recruitment 
To include information on where vacancies are, the levels of 
vacancies, and recruitment particularly in social work.  

Local Government Reform  TBC 

Update on Workforce Representation 
Informal Scrutiny Work 

 TBC 

Environmental Impact of Construction 
Projects 

As requested previously during the 2023/24 municipal year TBC 

City Mayor’s Strategic Priorities  TBC 

 

139




	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes
	111 Questions for the City Mayor
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21
	Slide 22
	Slide 23
	Slide 24
	Slide 25
	Slide 26
	Slide 27
	Slide 28
	Slide 29
	Slide 30
	Slide 31
	Slide 32
	Slide 33
	Slide 34
	Slide 35


	7 Tracking of Petitions - Monitoring Report
	OSC Petition Sheet - April 2025

	9 Independent Care Homes in Leicester City
	10 Corporate Estate Annual Report
	Corporate Estate Annual Report 23.24 FINAL

	11 Overview Select Committee Work Programme

